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REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Metra Manila, Philippines
ANNUAL AUDITED FINANCIAL REPORT

Information Required of Brokers and Dealers Pursuant to Rule 52.1-5 of the Securities
Regulation Code

Report for the Period Beginning January 1, 2024 and Ending December 31, 2024,

IDENTIFICATION OF BROKER OR DEALER

Name of Broker/Dealer - ASIASEC EQUITIES, INC.
Address of Principal Place of Business : 8th Floor, Chatham House. 116 Valero cor.
V.A Rufino Streets, Salcedo Village, Makati City

Name and Phone Number of Person to Contact with Regards to this Report

Name : Dennis L. lgnacio
Telephone Number 1 845-3421
Fax Number : B45-3419

IDENTIFICATION OF ACCOUNTANT
Name of Independent Certified Public Accountant whose opinion is contained in
this Report:

MName : Pamela Grace S. Tangso

MENDOZA TUGANO & CO.
CPA Certificate
No. : 0188635
SEC Accreditation
MNo. : 2022070060056-19
Tax Identification
No. : 249-790-835
BIR Accreditation
No. : 08-008188-003-2024
PTR Number : 10473024
Date Issued : January B, 2025
Tel. Number : 887-1888
Fax Number : 887-1264
Address . 16th Floor, The Salcedo Towers, 169 H. V. Dela Costa Street,
| Salcedo Village, Makati City
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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

January 31, 2025

Securities and Exchange Commission
7907 Makati Avenue, Salcedo Village,
Bel-Air, Makati City 1209

The management of ASIASEC EQUITIES, ING. is responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements including the schedules attached therein, for the years ended
December 31, 2024 and 2023, in accordance with the prescribed financial reporting framewark
indicated therein, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability
to continue as a going cancern, disclosing, as applicable matters related to going concemn and using
the going concemn basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial statements including the schedules
attached therein, and submits the same to the stockholders.

Mendoza Tugano & Co., CPAs, the independent auditors, appointed by the stockhalders for the years
ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, has audited the financial statements of the Company in
accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, and in its repart to the stockholders, has
expressed its opinion on the fairmess of presentation upon completion of such audit,

WARRENT. 8Y
(Chairman of the Board)

™)

DENNIS L. IGNACIO
(President)

SANDRA S'\CHONG
(Treasurer)

; 1
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO, before me this H%Ey;f msat Makati City, exhibiting to me

e —

their Social Security System |D No. and Driver's License 1D No. as follows:

WARREN T, SY Driver's License |D Mo, ND9-83-027774
DENNIS L. IGNACIO 555 1D Mo. 03-7795572-4
SANDRA 5. CHONG S55 1D No. 03-7257254-1
Doc. No. _ 214 X
Page No. ATTY. Ro@ﬁ 5. DE REAL, JR.
Book Mo. Molary Pubir~H&.&: ati until 12/31/2026

Series of 2025 Apt. No. M-043 15D yo. 488045 12/20/2024
Roll No. 49753 M%" £ %15, V018202
TR Mo. 207854 01/52/2025 11 anila
8" Fir VGP Center Room 635 6772 Ayaia Ave. Makah




MENDOZA
WC Tugano & Co., CPAs

16th Floor, The Salcedo Towers 169
HV. de la Costa Street, Salcedo
Village, Makati City, 1227 Philippines

(63J) BEE/-1888 | www.mico.com.ph

SUPPLEMENTAL STATEMENT
OF INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Asiasec Equities, Inc.

8™ Floor, Chatham House

116 Valero cor. Herrera Streets,

Salcedo Village, Makati City

We have examined the financial statements of Asiasec Equities, Inc. for the year ended December
31, 2024, on which we have rendered the attached report dated February 14, 2025.

in compliance with Revised SRC Rule 68, we are stating that the said Company has a total number of
one (1) stockhelder owning one hundred (100) or more shares.

For the Firm: MENDOZA TUGANO & CO., CPAs

BOA Mo. 9682/P-003
Valid from May 08, 2024 to July 18, 2026
TIN 249-790-835
BIR Accreditation No. 08-008188-003-2024,
December 03, 2024, valid until December 02, 2027
PTR No. 10473024, January 6, 2025, Makati City

February 14, 2025




| " MENDOZA
MC Tugano & Co., CPAs

16th Floor, The Salcedo Towers 169
HV. de la Costa Street, Salcedo
Village, Makati Gity, 1227 Philippines

(632) BEST-1888 | www.mitco.com.ph

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Asiasec Equities, Inc.

8th Floor, Chatham House, 116 Valero corner,
W.A. Rufino Street, Salcedo Village, Makati City

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Asiasec Equities, Inc. (“the Company™), which comprise
the statements of financial position as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the statements of
income, statement of changes in equity and statements of cash flows for the years then ended, and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2024 and 2023, and its financial performance
and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Philippine Financial Reparting
Standards (PFRS).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the
Philippines, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of thé financial statements in
accordance with PFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due
to fraud ar error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using




the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Stafements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with PSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decision of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence thal is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

= Ewvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to continue as a going concern.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and wheiher the financial statement represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Page 2 of 3



Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements of
Asiasec Equities, Inc. taken as a whole. The supplementary information for the years ended
December 31, 2024 and 2023 required by the Bureau of Internal Revenue as disclosed in Note 27 to
the financial statements is presented for purposes of filing with the Bureau of Internal Revenue and is
not a required part of the basic financial statements prepared in accordance with PERS. Such
supplementary information is the responsibility of management and has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial statements. In our opinion, the
information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as
a whole,

For the Firm: MENDOZA TUGANO & CO., CPAs

Walid from May 08, 2024 to July 18, 2026
TIM 249-790-835
BIR Accreditation Mo, 08-008188-003-2024,

December 03, 2024, valid until December 02, 2027
PTR No. 10473024, January 6, 2025, Makati City

February 14, 2025
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Hi ASIASEC EQUITIES, INC,,

Valid files
e EAFS0001549610THTY122024.pdf
e EAFS000154961ITRTY122024.pdf

e EAFSO00154961AFSTY122024.pdf

Invalid file

¢ <None>

Transaction Code: AFS-0-2MXW1VV095DG95DLMYM213Z30Q2VRQ2VR
Submission Date/Time: Mar 27, 2025 08:07 AM
Company TIN: 000-154-961

Please be reminded that you accepted the terms and conditions for the use of this portal and expressly
agree, warrant and certify that:

e The submitted forms, documents and attachments are complete, truthful and correct based on
the personal knowledge and the same are from authentic records;

e The submission is without prejudice to the right of the BIR to require additional document, if
any, for completion and verification purposes;

e The hard copies of the documents submitted through this facility shall be submitted when
required by the BIR in the event of audit/investigation and/or for any other legal purpose.

This is a system-generated e-mail. Please do not reply.
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ASIASEC EQUITIES, INC.

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMEBER 31, 2024 AND 2023
{Amounts in Philippine Peso)

Notes 2024 2023
COMMISSION INCOME 2,16 P53,267,318 83,159,026
COST OF SERVICES 2,17 {39,550,508) (55,747 ,085)
GROSS INCOME 13,716,810 27,411,931
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 2,18 (20,283,369) (19,089,753)
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES) — net 2,20 28,507,536 (7,073,097)
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 21,940,977 1,249,081
PROVISION FOR (BENEFIT FROM) INCOME TAX 2,15
Current 297,894 1,947 680
Deferred 2,907,726 (3,620,926)
3,205,620 (1,673,246)
NET INCOME 18,735,357 2,922 327
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
ltems not to be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods:
Remeasurement income
defined benefit plan 2,3,19 6,682,198 10,565
Income tax effect 2,15 (1,670,550} (2,641)
5,011,648 7,924
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME P23.74 P2.830,251
EARNINGS PER SHARE 2. 21 P17.84 P 2.78

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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ASIASEC EQUITIES, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023
{Amounts in Philippine Peso)

Notes 2024 2023
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income before income tax P21,940,977 71,249,081
Adjustments for;
Unrealized loss (gain) on financial asset measured
at fair value through profit or loss 6,20  (18,084,090) 16,881,213
Dividend income 6, 20 (6,230,737) (6,230,805)
Depreciation and amortization 9 18 1,709,492 2,765,656
Interest income 20 (2,591,865) (1,823,509)
Employee retirement cost recorded in profit or loss 19 923,260 82,054
Interest expense on lease liability 14, 20 53,444 42 837
Recovery from bad debt 7,20 1,269,902 372,472
Operating income (loss) before working capital changes (1,009,617) 13,338,098
Decrease (increase) in:
Held for trading securities (5,778,928) -
Receivable from:
Customers (86,585,705) (34,624,228)
Clearing house (122,977,335) 99,417,451
Brokers 7,128,550 (6,225,350)
Others (18,620) 107,349
Prepayments and other current assets (866,888) 950,952
Other assets (555,917) -
Increase (decrease) in:
Payable to:
Customers 211,362,124 (153,090,536)
Clearing house (43,266,085) 43,266,085
Brokers 3,499 2,042
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 1,916,901 (12,360,080)
Subscriptions payable of stock rights - (7,031,250)
Met cash used in operations (40,648,021) (56,248, 566)
Dividend received 6,230,737 6,230,805
Contributions to plan assets (2,040,000) (2,040,000)
Interest received 2,591,865 1,823,509
Income tax paid (297,894) (1,947,680)
Met cash used in operating activities (34,163,313) (52,181,932)

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of property and equipment 9 {1,765,536) (3.266,371)
Net cash used in investing activities (1,765,536) (3,266,371)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Payment of lease liability 14 (1,797,016) {1,807,623)
Payment of interest on lease liability 14 (53,444) (42,837}
Cash used in financing activities (1,850,460} {1,850,460)

{Fonward)



NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (37,779,309) (57,298,763)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING

OF YEAR 166,270,866 223,569,629
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 5 P128,491,557 P166.270 866

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.



ASIASEC EQUITIES, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.

General

Asiasec Equities, Inc. ("the Company") was incorporated in the Philippines and registered with the
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on November 21, 1989. The Company is engaged in the
brokerage business of stocks, bonds and other financial securities.

The Company is a member of the Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc. (PSE).

The Company has its registered office address, which is also its principal place of business at 8th Floor,
Chatham House, 116 Valero corner V.A. Rufino Street, Salcedo Village, Makati City. It has 22 and 24
employees as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

On November 13, 2023, the Company's majority shareholders sold their 99.99% ownership stake to
Carrick Corporation.

Then, on November 22, 2023, the Company submitted to the PSE an application for Change in Contralling
Interest on account of the purchase by Carrick Corporation of the Company's issued and outstanding
shares. The same was approved by the PSE in its meeting held on September 18, 2024.

These financial statements have been approved and authorized for issuance by the Board of Directors on
February 14, 2025.

Basis of Preparation, Statement of Compliance and Summary of Material Accounting Policy
Information Adopted

2.1 Statement of Compliance
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in compliance with the Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS). The term PFRS in general includes all applicable PFRS,
Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS), International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee
(IFRIC)/Standing Interpretations Committee Interpretations and Philippine Interpretations Committee
Interpretations, which have been approved by the Financial Reporting Standards Council (FRSC) and
adopted by SEC, including SEC pronouncements.

2.2 Basis of Preparation
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared using the measurement bases specified
by PFRS Accounting Standards for each type of resource, liability, income and expense. The
measurement bases are more fully described in the accounting policies that follow. All values are
rounded to the nearest peso except as otherwise indicated.

2.3 New Standards, Interpretations, and Amendments
2.3.1 New standards and amendments effective beqinning on or after January 1, 2024
The following standards and amendments have become effective for the annual periods commencing
on or after January 1, 2024.

Unless otherwise indicated, adoption of these new standards did not have an impact on the financial
statements of the Company.
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e Amendments to PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements - Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current

The amendments clarify;

e That only covenants with which an entity must comply on or before reporting date will affect a
liability's classification as current or non-current;

+ That classification is unaffected by the likelihood that an entity will exercise its deferral right; and,

« That only if an embedded derivative in a convertible liability is itself an equity instrument would
the terms of a liability not impact its classification.

s Amendments to PAS 16, Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

The amendments specify how a seller-lessee measures the lease liability arising from a sale and
leaseback transaction in a way that it does not recognize any amount of gain or loss that relates to
the right of use retained,

s Amendments to PAS 7 and PFRS 7, Statement of Cash Flows, and Financial Instruments:
Disclosures — Supplier Finance Arrangements

The amendments specify disclosure requirements to enhance the current requirements, which are
intended to assist users of financial statements in understanding the effects of supplier finance
arrangements on an entity's liabilities, cash flows and exposure to liquidity risk.

2.4 Future Changes in Accounting Policies
The standards and interpretations that were issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of
the Company's financial statements are listed below. The Company intends to adopt these standards
when they become effective. Unless otherwise stated, adoption of these standards and interpretations
are not expected to have any significant impact on the financial statements of the Company.

2.4 1 Effective on or after January 1, 2025
= Amendments to PAS 21, Lack of exchangeability

2.4 2 Effective on or after January 1, 2026
» Amendments to PFRS 9 and PFRS 7, Classification and Measurement of Financial Instruments
o Amendments to PFRS 7, Gain or Loss on Derecognition

s Amendments to PFRS 9, Lessee Derecognilion of Lease Liabilities and Transaction Price

2.4.3 Effective on or after January 1, 2027
e Amendments to PFRS 18, Preseniation and Disclosure in Financial Statements
® PFRS 17, Insurance Contracts

2.4 4 Deferred effectivity

« Amendments to PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements, and PAS 28, Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an Invesior and its Associate or Joint Venture




2.5 Significant Accounting Policies
2.5.1 Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

The Company recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in the statements of financial
position when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. In the case of
regular way purchase or sale of financial assets, recognition and derecognition, as applicable, is
done using setflement date accounting. Financial instruments are classified as liabilities or equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement. Interest, dividends, gains and losses
relating to a financial instrument of a component that is a financial liability, are reported as expense
or income. Distribution to holders of financial instruments classified as equity are charged directly to
shareholders’ equity, net of any related income tax benefits. Financial instruments are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset and intention to settle either on a net basis or to realize
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.8.1.1 Financial asseis
2.5.1.1.1 Initial recognition of financial instruments
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortized
cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or
loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset's
contractual cash flow characteristics and the Company's business model for managing them.
With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component
or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient, the Company initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient
are measured at the transaction price determined under PFRS 15,

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortized cost or fair value
through OCI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are 'solely payments of principal and
interest (SPPI)' on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the
SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level.

The Company's business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its
financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether
cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or
bath.

FPurchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame
established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are
recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell
the asset.

2.5.1.1.2 Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
+ Financial assets at amortized cost (debt instruments).
* Financial assels at fair value through OCI with recycling of cumulative gains and losses
{debt instruments).
- Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains
and losses upon derecognition (equity instruments),
* Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.



-4-

2.5.1.1.2.1 Financial assets at amortized cost (debt instruments)
This category is the most relevant to the Company. The Company measures financial assets
at amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met:
* The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial
assels in order to collect contractual cash flows; and
= The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortized cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest
(EIR) method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or
loss when the asset is derecognized, modified or impaired.

The Companys financial assets at amortized cost includes receivables from customers,
brokers and others.

2.5.1.1.2.2 Financial assefs at fair value through OCI (debt instruments)
* The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective of both helding to
collect contractual cash flows and selling; and
* The confractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount cutstanding.

For debt instruments at fair value through OCI, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation
and impairment losses or reversals are recognized in the statement of profit or loss and
computed in the same manner as for financial assets measured at amortized cost. The
remaining fair value changes are recognized in OCI. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair
value change recegnized in OCI is recycled to profit or loss,

The Company does not have debt instruments at fair value through OCI as of December 31,
2024 and 2023,

2.5.1.1.2.3 Financial assels designated at fair value through OCI (equity insiruments)
Upon initial recognition, the Company can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments
as equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI when they meet the definition of
equity under PAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. The
classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss, Dividends are
recognized as other income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has
been established, except when the Company benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of
part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in OCI. Equity
instruments designated at fair value through OCI are not subject to impairment assessment.

The Company does not have financial assets designated at fair value through OC| as of
December 31, 2024 and 2023.

2.5.1.1.2.4 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading,
financial assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss, or
financial assets mandatorily required to be measured at fair value. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in
the near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.
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Financial assets with cash flows that are not solely paymenis of principal and interest are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business
maodel. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to be classified at amortized cost or
at fair value through OCI, as described above, debt instruments may be designated at fair
value through profit or loss on initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or significantly
reduces, an accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement of financial
position at fair value with net changes in fair value recognized in the statement of profit or
loss.

The Company has financial assets at fair value through profit or loss amounted to
P155,819 584 and P131 956,566 as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

2.5.1.1.3 Embedded derivatives

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial liability or non-financial host, is
separated from the host and accounted for as a separate derivative if: the economic
characteristics and risks are nof closely related to the host; a separate instrument with the
same terms as the embedded derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and the
hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit or loss. Embedded derivatives are
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in profit or loss. Reassessment
only occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies
the cash flows that would otherwise be reguired or a reclassification of a financial asset out of
the fair value through profit or loss category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a financial asset host is not
accounted for separately. The financial asset host together with the embedded derivative is
required to be classified in its entirety as a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss.

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023 the Company does not have any embedded derivatives
required to be separated from the host contract.

2.5.1.1.4 Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognized when;
* The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or
* The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement and either (a) the Company has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has
entered into a passthrough arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained
the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of its continuing involvement. In
that case, the Company also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount
of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.
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2.5.1.1.5 Impairment of financial assels
The Company recognizes an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt
instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference
between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the coniract and all the cash
flows that the Company expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

ECLs are recognized in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL).
For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining
life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Company applies a simplified approach in
calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Company does not track changes in credit risk, but instead
recognizes a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Company
has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

The Company considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are five day
past due. However, in certain cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset to be
in default when internal or external information indicates that the Company is unlikely to
receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Company. A financial asset is written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

2.5.1.2 Financial liabilities
2.5.1.2.1 Initial remgm'm:an and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as
hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company's financial liabilities includes payable to customers, clearing house and broker,
accounis payable and accrued expenses, lease liabilities and dividend payables.

2.5.1.2.2 Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below;

2 .5.1.2.2.1 Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or
loss.

Financial liabilittes are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments
entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as defined by PFRS 9. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.
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Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in PFRS 9 are satisfied,
The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit or loss.

2.5.1.2.2.2 Loans and borrowings
This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing
loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method.
Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well
as through the EIR amortization process,

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as
finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

2.5.1.2.3 Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by ancther from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

2.5.1.3 Offsetfing of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
statement of financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

2.5.2 Cash and Cash Equivalenis
For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include
cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

2.5.3 Receivables from Customers and Clearing House
Receivables from customers, which include margin accounts, and payable to clearing house and
other brokers arise from securities purchased (in a regular way transaction) that have been
contracted for but not yet delivered and settled at the end of the reporting period.

Receivable from clearing house and other brokers arise from securities sold (in a regular way
transaction) thal have been contracted for but not yet delivered and settled at the end of the
reporting period. Refer to the accounting policy for ‘Loans and receivables’ and ‘Other financial
liabilities' for recognition and measurement.

2.5.4 Prepayments and Other Current Assets
2.5.4.1 Creditable withholding tax

Creditable withholding tax represents income tax withheld by the customers that can be claimed
as credit against the Company's income tax liabilities.

2.5.4.2 Prepayments
Prepayments include expenses already paid but not yet incurred. These are measured at cost
less amortization.



2.5.5 Property and Equipment
Property and equipment are stated at cost, excluding the costs of day-to-day servicing, less
accumulated depreciation and amortization and any impairment in value,

Depreciation and amortization is calculated on a straight-line basis over the expected useful lives of
the assets as follows:

Property and Equipment MNo. of Years
Office equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Leasehold improvements
Transportation equipment
Right-of-use asset

— O on G La

The Company recognized right-of-use asset for leases of office space. The lease typically run for a
period of one year. The lease contain an option to renew at the end of the lease term and is being
subjected to reviews to reflect current market rentals. The renewal option provides operational
flexibility in managing the leased asset portfolio and aligns the business needs of the Company. The
amortization period of the depreciation of the right-of-use asset was based on the lease term of the
leased asset.

Expected useful lives are reviewed at each statement of financial position date and if they differ
significantly from previous estimates, the remaining depreciation periods are adjusted accordingly.

The initial cost of property and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use. Expenditures
incurred after the property and equipment have been put into operations, such as repairs and
maintenance and overhaul costs, are normally charged to operations in the period the costs are
incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditures have resulted in
an increase in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an item of
property and equipment beyond its originally assessed standard of perfformance, the expenditures
are capitalized as additional costs of property and equipment. Cost also includes any asset
retirement obligation and interest on borrowed funds used. When assets are sold or retired, their
costs and accumulated depreciation, amortization and impairment losses, if any, are eliminated
from the accounts and any gain or loss resulting from their disposal is included in the statements of
comprehensive income of such period,

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset) is included in the statements of comprehensive income in the year the asset is
derecognized.

2.5.6 Trading Right
Trading right is carried at cost less any impairment in value. The trading right is an intangible asset
to be regarded as having an indefinite useful life as there is no foreseeable limit to the period over
which this asset is expected to generate net cash inflows for the Company.

In accordance with PAS 38, Infangible Assets, intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are
fested for impairment annually either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. Such
intangibles are not amortized. The useful life of an intangible asset with an indefinite useful life is
reviewed annually to determine whether indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If
not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.
Any impairment loss is taken up as a charge against current operations.
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A gain or loss arising from derecognition of an intangible asset is measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the
statements of comprehensive income when the asset is derecognized.

2.5.7 Other Assets
2.5.7.1 Investmentis in stock
Investments in stock are investment in unquoted equity securities measured at fair value.

2.5.7.2 Refundable deposit
Refundable deposits are cash paid to lessor that the Company expects a return after the lease
term. These are measured at cost.

2.5.7.3 Other asset— CTGF

Other asset — CTGF refers to the refundable balance of the Company's contributions to the
Clearing and Trade Guaranty Fund (CTGF) that is recognized as an asset in accordance to
SCCP Memo No. 01-0718. These amendments, allow clearing members to receive refunds of
their CTGF contributions upon cessation of business and/or termination of their membership with
SCCP, provided all liabilities to SCCP at the time of termination are fully satisfied.

2.5.8 Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets
This accounting policy applies primarily to the Company’s property and equipment (see Note 9) and
trading right (see Mote 10).

The Company assesses at each statement of financial position date whether there is an indication
that its nonfinancial assets may be impaired. When an indicator of impairment exists or when an
annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company makes a formal estimate of
recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's (or cash-generating unit's) fair
value less costs to sell and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is assessed as part of the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs. Where the carrying amount of an asset (or cash generating unit) exceeds
its recoverable amount, the asset (or cash-generating unit) is considered impaired and is written
down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or cash-generating
unit). Impairment losses are recognized in the statements of comprehensive income.

An assessment is made at each statement of financial position date as to whether there is any
indication that previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have
decreased. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognized
impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. If that is the case, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation and amortization,
had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in
the statements of comprehensive income. After such a reversal, the depreciation and amortization
expense is adjusted in fulure years to allocate the asset's revised carrying amount, less any residual
value, on a systematic basis over its remaining life.

2.5.9 Pavable to Customers and Brokers
Payable to customers and brokers are liabilities to pay for the unclaimed payout of the customers.

These are non-interest bearing and are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently measured
at amortized cost less settlement payments.
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2.5.10 Payable to Clearing House
Payable to clearing house are liabilities (for the stock purchases of the Company's customers
through the Philippine Stock Exchange). These are non-interest bearing and are normally seftled
within four days from stock purchase date. This is measured at transaction amount which
approximates fair value.

2.5.11 Accounts Payables
Accounts payables are recognized in the period in which the related money, goods, or services are
received or when a legally enforceable claim against the Company is established. These are non-
interest bearing and are recognized initially at transaction amounts, which approximates their fair
values. These are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within (1) year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, these are presented as non-current liabilities
and subsequently measured at amortized cost.

2.5.12 Accrued Expenses
Accrued expenses are recognized in the peried in which the related money, goods or services are
received or incurred and have been invoiced or formally agreed with the supplier. These are non-
interest bearing and are stated at their amortized cost if payable beyond 12 months otherwise are
stated at cost.

2.5.13 Subseription Payable
Subscription payable represents the unpaid balance of the Company's subscription to stock rights in

a listed company. This is initially recorded ai the acquisition cost and subsequently measured at net
of settlement payments.

2.5.14 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when: (a) the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event; (b) it is probable (i.e., more likely than not) that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; and (c) a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are reviewed at each statement of financial
position date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If the effect of the time value of
money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-
tax rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and, where appropriate,
the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognized as interest expense in the statements of comprehensive income,
Where the Company expects a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognized as a
separate asset but only when the reimbursement is probable.

2.5.15 Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements but disclosed unless the
possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.

Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements but disclosed when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable.

2.5.16 Share Capital
Share Capital are classified as equity and are recorded at par. Proceeds in excess of par value are
recorded as ‘Additional paid-in capital’ in the statements of financial position.

The costs of acquiring Company's own shares are shown as a deduction from equity attributable to
the Company's equity holders until the shares are cancelled or reissued. When such shares are
subsequently sold or reissued, any consideration received, net of directly attributable incremental
transaction costs and the related income tax effects, is included in equity attributable to the
Company's equity holders.,
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2.5.17 Dividend on Share Capital
Dividends on share capital are recognized as a liability and deducted from equity when approved by
the Board of Directors in the case of cash dividends.

2.5.18 Retained Earnings
Retained earnings include all current and prior period results of operations as disclosed in the
statements of comprehensive income,

2.5.19 Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to the common
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of commen shares outstanding
during the year, after considering the retroactive effect of stock dividend declaration, if any.

2.5.20 Revenue and Cost Recognition
Revenue is recognized when it is probable that a transaction will generate a future economic benefit
to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition
criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

2.5.20.1 Commission income

Commissions are recognized at the point of trade execution when the Company fulfils its
obligation to facilitate securities transactions on behalf of its customers.

Commissions are derived from external customers disaggregated by individual, government
institution and fund.

2.5.20.2 Interest income
Interest income is recognized as interest accrues (using the EIR method that is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial asset).

2.5.20.3 Dividend income

Dividend income are recognized when the Company's right to receive the payment is
established.

Cost and administrative expenses are recognized in the statements of comprehensive income upon
utilization of the service or during the date they are incurred.

2.5.21 Fereign Currency Transactions
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation of the monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are generally recognized in profit or loss. They are
deferred in equity if they relate to qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges
or are atiributable to part of the net investment in a foreign operation.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings are presented in the statements of
comprehensive income, within finance cost. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the statements of comprehensive income on a net basis within other income or other
expense.

The results and financial position of foreign operations (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have functional currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

» Assets and liabilities for each statements of financial position presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that statements of financial position;
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s Income and expense for each statements of comprehensive income are translated at average

exchange rates (unless this is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transactions dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at
the dates of the transactions), and

e All resulting exchange differences are recognized in other comprehensive income.

2.5.22 Leases
At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A
confract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
assel for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether:

a.

The contract involves the use of an identified asset — this may be specified explicitly or implicitly,
and should be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of a physically
distinct asset. If the supplier has a substantive substitution right, then the asset is not identified;

. The Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the

asset throughout the period of use; and

The Company has the right to direct the use of the asset. The Company has this right when it
has the decision-making rights that are most relevant to changing how and for what purpose the
asset is used. In rare cases where the decision about how and for what purpose the asset is
used is predetermined, the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset if either:

+ the Company has the right to operate the asset; or

+ the Company designed the asset in a way that predetermines how and for what purpose it will
be used.

2.5.22.1 Company as lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets,

2.5.22 1.1 Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.
The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases
{i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets
recognition exemption to leases of supermarket shelves that are considered to be low value
(e.g P250,000 or below). Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assels are recognized as expense on a siraight-line basis over the lease term.

2.5.22.1.2 Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
The Company recognizes lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying asset.

The Company depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-line basis from the lease
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the
end of the lease term. The company aslso assesses the right-of-use asset for impairment
when such indicators exist.

At commencement date, the Company measures the |lease liability at the present value of the
lease payments unpaid at that date, discounted using interest rate implicit in the lease or the
Company's incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability are made up of fixed
asset, variable payments based on an index rate, amounts expected to be payable under a
residual value guarantee and payments arising from options arising from options reasonably
certain to be exercised.
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Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made and
increased for interest. It is remeasured to reflect any reassessment of modification, or if there
are changes in-substance fixed payments.

When the lease liability is remeasured, the corresponding adjustment is reflected in the right-
of-use asset, or profit or loss if the right-of-use asset is already reduced to zero.

2.5.23 Employvees' Benefits
The Company recognizes a liability when an employee has provided service in exchange for
employee benefits to be paid in the future and an expense when the entity consumes the economic
benefits arising from service provided by an employee in exchange for employee benefits.
Employee benefits are short-term employee benefits and post-employment benefits.

2.5.23.1 Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits that are expected to be settled wholly
before twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related
service. The Company recognizes a liability net of amounis already paid and an expense for
services rendered by employees during the accounting period. Short-term benefits given by the
Company to its employees include salaries and wages, social security contributions, short-term
compensated absences, profit sharing and bonuses, and non-monetary benefits. Compensated
absences are recognized for the number of paid leave days (including holiday entitlement)
remaining at the statement of financial position date. These are included in salaries and wages
account at an undiscounted amount that the Company expects to pay as a result of the unused
entitlernent.

2.5.23.2 Post retirement benefits
Payments to retirement benefit plans are recognized as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

The cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial
valuations being carried out at the end of each reporting period. Remeasurement comprising of
actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan
assets (excluding interest) are recognized immediately in the statement of financial position with
a charge or credit to other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur,
Remeasurement recorded in other comprehensive income is not recycled. However, the entity
may fransfer those amounts recognized in other comprehensive income within equity. Past
service cost is recognized in profit or loss in the period of plan amendment. Net-interest is
calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. Retirement
cosis are split into three categories:

« current service cost, past-service cost, gains and losses on curtailments and settlements;

s net-interest expense or income:;

= remeasurament.

The Company presents the first two components of retirement costs in the line item ‘employee
retirement cost’ in its statements of comprehensive income. Curtailments gains and losses (if
any) are accounted for as past-service cost,

Remeasurement are recorded in other comprehensive income.

The retirement obligation recognized in the statements of financial position represents the actual
deficit or surplus in the Company's retirement plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is
limited to the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the
plans or reductions in future contributions to the plans.
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2.5.24 Income Taxes
2.5.24.1 Current
Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates used and tax
laws applied to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantially enacted at the
statements of financial position date.

2.5.24.2 Deferred
Deferred income tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the
statements financial position date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, with certain
exceptions. Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences with
certain exceptions, and carryforward benefits of unused tax credits from excess minimum
corporate income tax (MCIT) over regular corporate income tax and unused net operating loss
carryover (NOLCO), to the extent that it is probable that taxable income will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences and carryforward benefits of unused tax credits from
excess MCIT and unused NOLCO can be utilized.

The carrying amounts of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each statement of financial position
date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable income will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax
assets are reassessed at each statement of financial position date, and are recognized to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable income will allow the deferred tax assets
to be recognized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rate that is expected to apply to the
period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted as of the statements of financial position date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

2.5.25 Related Parly Relationships and Transactions
2.5.25.1 Related parly relationship
Related party relationship exists when one party has the ability to control, directly or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, the other party or exercise significant influence over the
other party in making financial and operating decisions. Such relationship also exists between
and/or among entities which are under common control with the reporting enterprise, or between
and/or among the reporting enterprises and their key management personnel, directors, or its
shareholder. In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the
substance of the relationship, and not merely the legal form.

2.5 252 Related parly transactions
A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between a reporting
entity and a related party regardless of whether a price is charged. Transactions with related
parties are accounted for al terms similar to those offered to non-related entities in an
economically comparable market.

2.5.26 Events After the End of Reporting Period
Any post year-end event up to the date of approval of the Board of Directors of the financial
statements that provides additional information about the Company's position at the statements of
financial position date (adjusting event) is reflected in the financial statements. Any post year-end
event that is not an adjusting event is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, when
material.
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3. Significant Accounting Judgment and Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with PFRS requires the management to make
judgments and estimates that affect the reported amounts reported in the financial statements and
accompanying notes. The judgments and estimates used in the financial statements are based upon
management's evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances as of the reporting date. Future events may
oceur which can cause the assumptions used in arriving at those judgments and estimates to change. The
effects of any changes will be reflected in the financial statements of the Company as they become
reasonably determinable.

3.1 Judgments
In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made the following
judgments, apart from those involving estimates, which have the most significant effect on amounts
recognized in the financial statements.

3.1.1 Classification of Financial Intruments

The Company exercises judgment in classifying a financial instrument, or its component parts, on
initial recognition as either a financial asset, a financial liability or an equity instrument in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangement and the definitions of a financial asset, a financial
liability or an equity instrument. The substance of a financial instrument, rather than its legal form,
governs its classification in the statement of financial position. In addition, the Company classifies
financial assets by evaluating, among others, whether the asset is quoted or not in an active market.
Included in the evaluation on whether a financial asset is quoted in an active market is the
determination on whether quoted prices are readily and regularly available, and whether those
prices represent actual and reqularly occurring market transactions on an arm's length basis.

3.1.2 Determination of Fair Values of Financial Instruments
The Company carries certain financial assets and liabilities at fair value, which requires extensive
use of accounting judgments and estimates. While significant components of fair value
measurement were determined using verifiable objective evidence (i.e., foreign exchange rates,
interest rates, volatility rates), the amount of changes in fair value would differ if the Company
utilized different valuation methodologies and assumptions. Any changes in the fair value of these
financial assets and liabilities would affect profit and loss and equity.

Where the fair values of certain financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the statements of
financial position cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined using internal
valuation technigues using generally accepted market valuation models. The inputs to these models
are taken from observable market data where possible, but where this is not feasible, estimates are
used in establishing fair values. The judgments include considerations of liquidity and model inputs
such as correlation and volatility for longer-dated derivatives. The fair values of the Company's
derivative financial instruments are based from guotes obtained from counterparties.

The fair values of the Company's financial instruments are disclosed in Note 25,

3.1.3 Determining Whether a Coniract is, or Contains a Lease

The Company has entered into various lease agreements, The management considers whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. The management assesses whether the contract meets three key
evaluations which are whether: the contract contains an identified asset, which is either explicitly
identified in the contract or implicitly specified by being identified at the time the asset is made
available to the Company; the Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic
benefits from use of the identified asset throughout the period of use, considering its rights within
the defined scope of the contract; and the Company has the right to direct the use of the identified
asset throughout the period of use. Failure to make the right judgment will result in either
averstatement or understatement of assets and liabilities.
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The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at each
reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of

assets and liabilities follow:

3.2.1 Measurement of Expected Credit Loss (ECL) Allowance

The measurement of the expected credit loss allowance for financial assets measured at amortized
cost and FVOCI is an area that requires the use of complex models and significant assumptions
about future economic conditions and credit behavior.

A number of significant judgements are also required in applying the accounting rquirements for

measuring ECL, such as:

e« Determining criteria for significant increase in credit risk;

« Choosing appropriate models and assumptions for the measurement of ECL,;

« Establishing the number and relative weightings of forward-looking scenarios for each type of
product/market and the associated ECL; and

» Establishing groups of similar financial assets for the purposes of measuring ECL.

On that basis, the loss allowance as at December 31, 2024 was determined as follows:

Tto T+1 T+2 to T+12 T+12 to T+30 Beyond T+31 Total

Recenables from customers and brokers
Receivable 588,623 553 PE2.118,700 { P1386,240 P170,928,502
Default rate 0.0% 2.0% 0.0% 0.0%
ECL P— P1,642,374 P P- F1,642,374

0 to 30 days 31 to 60 days= 61 to 90 days After 90 days Total
Other receivables
Advances ®33,150 P e - P33.150
Others 7,050 - - - 7,080
Total 240,200 - - — 40,200
Dafault rate 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
ECL P- P- P- P— P-

On that basis, the loss allowance as at December 31, 2023 was determined as follows:

Tto T+1 T+2 to T+12 T+12 to T+30 Beyond T+31 Total

Recelvables from customers and brokers
Recelvable P71.913 581 #18,623.622 P332 209 Pal1, 935 PO1.471,347
Default rate 0.0% 2.0% 0.0% 0.0%
ECL i PaT2 472 P . PIT2.472

to 30 days 31 to 60 days 61 to 90 days After 90 days Total
Other receivables
Advances P15,000 P P- P B15,000
Others 6,580 - - - 6,580
Total 21,580 - — - #21.580
Default rate 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
ECL P P | P— -

3.2.2 Estimated Useful Lives of Property and Equipment

The Company estimates the useful lives of its property and equipment based on the period over
which the assets are expeciled to be available for use. The estimated useful lives of property and
equipment are reviewed at least annually and are updated if expectations differ from previous
estimates due to physical wear and tear and technical or commercial obsolescence on the use of
these assets, It is possible that future results of operations could be materially affected by changes
in these estimates brought about by changes in factors mentioned above. A reduction in the
estimated useful lives of property and equipment would increase depreciation expense and
decrease noncurrent assets.
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As of December 31, 2024 and 2023 property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation and
amortization, amounted to 4,694 241 and £2,835,650, respectively (see Note 9),

3.2.3 Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets
The Company assesses the impairment of its nonfinancial assets (i.e., property and equipment and
trading right} whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an
asset may not be recoverable.

The factors that the Company considers important which could trigger an impairment review include

the following;

e significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the asset:

« market interest rates or other market rates of return on investments have increased during the
period, and those increases are likely to affect the discount rate used in calculating the asset's
value in use and decrease the asset's recoverable amount materially,
significant underperformance relative to expected historical or projected future operating results;
significant changes in the manner of use of the acquired assets or the strategy for overall
business; and

= significant negative industry or economic trends,

The Company determines an impairment loss whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds
its recoverable amount.

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023 the Company has no impaired nonfinancial assets.

3.2.4 Present Value of Retirement Costs
The determination of employee retirement cost is dependent on the selection of certain assumptions
used in calculating such amounts which obtain from an actuarial valuation report from a certified
actuary. Those assumptions include, among others, discount rates, mortality rates and salary and
benefits increase rates. Due to long term nature of these plans, such estimates are subject to
significant uncertainty (Note 19),

The Company's retirement employee cost amounted to P923,260 and P82,054 for 2024 and 2023,
respectively (Note 19).

3.2.5 Deferred Tax

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, including asset
revaluations. Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences,
carry forward of unused tax credits from the excess of minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) over
the regular income tax, and unused net operating loss carryover (NOLCO), to the extent that it is
probable that sufficient taxable income will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences and carry forward of unused tax credits from MCIT and unused NOLCO can be utilized.
Deferred income tax, however, is not recognized on temporary differences that arise from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting income nor taxable income or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced
fo the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable income will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred income tax assets are
reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that
future taxable income will allow the deferred income tax asset to be recovered.
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4. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Company's activities expose it to financial risk specifically to liquidity risk. The Company's overall risk
management program seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the
Company. The policies for managing specific risks are summarized below.

4.1 Governance Framework
The Company has established a risk management function with clear terms of reference and with the
responsibility for developing policies on market, credit, liquidity and operational risk, It also supports the
effective implementation of policies.

The policies define the Company's identification of risk and its interpretation limit structure to ensure the
appropriate quality and diversification of assets to the corporate goals and specify reporting
requirements.

4.2 Capital Management Framework

The Company's risk management function has developed and implemented certain minimum stress
and scenario tests for identifying the risks to which the Company are exposed, quantifying their impact
on the volatility of economic capital. The results of these tests, particularly, the anticipated impact on
the realistic balance sheet and revenue account, are reported to the Company's risk management
function. The risk management function then considers the aggregate impact of the overall capital
requirement revealed by the stress testing to assess how much capital is needed to mitigate the risk of
insoclvency to a selected remote level.

4.3 Regulatory Framework
The operation of the Company is also subject to the regulatory requirements of SEC. Such regulations
not only prescribe approval and menitoring of activities but also impose certain restrictive provisions.

4.4 Financial Risk
The Company's financial risk management policies seek to minimize potential adverse effects of
financial risk such as credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and market risk to its financial assets
and liabilities.

These risks arise from open positions in interest rate, foreign currency, listed equity securities and debt
securities all of which are exposed to general investment environment and specific market movements.
The Company faces these risks primarily due to the nature of its investments and liabilities.

4.5 Counterparty Risk
Counterparty risk is the risk that the counterparty to a trade fails to make good of his delivery of
securities sold, or payment for the shares bought.

Trading limits for each customer are set after assessment of the true risk and profile of the customers
{i.e., financial capacity, reputation, and collateral) on top of risk management procedures. Settlement
details are pre-maiched with the customers or their custodian banks at least a day before settlement
date. Receivable balances are also monitored regularly.

4.6 Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other
party to incur a financial loss.

In the normal course of business, the Company's activilies include trade execution for its clients. These
activities may expose the Company to risk arising from price volatility which can reduce the clients’
ability to meet their obligations. To the extent clients are unable to meet their commitments to the
Company, it may be required to purchase or sell financial instruments at prevailing market prices in
order to fulfill the client's obligations.
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In accordance with industry practice, client trades are normally settled three (3) business days after
trade date. Should either the client or the counterparty fail to perform, the Company may be required to
complete the transaction at prevailing market prices,

Clients settle their trade on a delivery versus payment scheme such that no shares are received or
delivered without corresponding payment thus limiting credit risk within the standard T+3 settlement.
Individual clients maintain their security positions with the Company in its scriptless form and are
usually sufficient to cover debit balances.

The Company monitors concentration of credit risks on both individual and institutional counterparty
basis and limits the risk through consideration of factors which includes the credit worthiness of the
client, its financial strength, and the size of its positions or commitments.

The following table provides information regarding the maximum credit risk exposure of the Company
as of December 31, 2024 and 2023

2024 2023
Cash and cash equivalents #12B6,481 557 166,260,866
Financial assel measured at fair value through profit or loss 155,819,584 131,956,566
Receivable from customers - net 169,286,128 83,970,325
Receivable from clearing house 122,977,335 -
Recaivable from brokers - 7,128,550

Other receivables 40,200 21,580

Other assets 6,870,000 6,670,000
Financial assets recognized in the statements of financial position P583.474 B04 P396,207 887

Excluded in cash and cash equivalents are cash on hand amounting to 10,000 for 2024 and 2023.
Receivable from Government amounting to 9,223,498 and P8 077 687, other prepayments amounting
to 2,122,936 and P1,845 942, and deposits amounting to P978,464 for years ending December 31,
2024 and 2023, respectively are also excluded from other assets as they are not exposed to any credit
risk.

The table below shows the analysis of age of the receivables from customers, clearing house and
brokers (gross of allowance for credit loss — receivable from customer cash account) as of December
31, 2024 and 2023:

2024
Meither past due  Past due but Past due and
Age nor impaired  not impaired impaired Taotal
T to T+1 8B 623,553 - P- P88,623,553
T+Zto T+12 - 82,118,700 - 82,118,700
T+13 to T+30 - - - -
Beyond T+31 - 186,249 - 186,249
PBB,623,553 P82,304,949 P— P170,928,502
2023
Meither past due Past due but Past due and
Age nor impaired not impaired impaired Total
TioT+1 P71.913,581 P— P- P71,913,581
T+2 10 T+12 - 18,623,622 - 18,623,622
T+13 1o T+30 - 332,209 - 332,209
Beyond T+31 - 601,935 - 601,935
P71.913,581 F19,667,766 PO1,471.347
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The table below shows the analysis of age of interest receivables, advances to officers and employees
and other receivables as of December 31, 2024 and 2023:

2024
Neither past due Past due but Past due and
Age nor impaired not impaired impaired Total
0 to 30 days P40,200 P P40,200
2023
Meither past due Past due but Past due and
Age nor impaired nol impaired impaired Total
0 to 30 days F21.580 P— P P21,580

The Company did not have any significant concentration of credit risk with a single counterparty or
group of counterparties and industry segments as of December 31, 2024 and 2023,

4.7 Liquidity Risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments

associated with financial instruments.

The table below analyzes the financial assets and financial liabilities of the Company into their relevant
maturity groups based on the remaining period at the statements of financial position date to their

contractual maturities or expected repayment dates.

As of December 31, 2024 Within 1 Year 1to 5 Years Over 5 Years Total
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 128,491,557 i - 128,491,557
Fair value through
proft or loss 155,819,584 - - 155,819,584
Receivable from customers 169,286,128 - - 169,286,128
Receivable from
clearing housea 122,977,335 - - 122,977,335
Other receivables 40,200 - - 40,200
Other assets*® - — 6,870,000 6,870,000
P576,614.804 P 6,870,000 P583.484 804
“Excluded in other assels are recenvables from Governmen! amounting to P9, 223,498,
As of December 31, 2023 Within 1 Year 1105 Years Over 5 Years Total
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents P166,270,866 P— P— #166,270,866
Fair value through proft or loss 131,956,566 - - 131,956,566
Receivable from customers 83,970,325 - - 83,970,325
Receivable from brokers 7,128,550 7,128,550
Other receivables 21,580 - - 21,580
Other assets* - - 6,870,000 6,870,000
P380 347 BAT P— PE,870.000 P386,217 887
‘Excluded in other assels are receivables fm..ﬁ‘dﬂ?.‘ — :
As of December 31, 2024 Within 1 Year 1to 5 Years Over 5 Years Total
Financial liabilities:
Payable to customers P293,667,323 P P P293,667,323
Payable to brokers 8,514 - - 8,514
Accounts payable* 3,668,747 - - 3,668,747
Lease liability 1,502,059 - - 1,502,059
Subscription payable £ = . =
P298,846,643 P— - P298,846,643

“Exciuded in other payables are payable to Government amounting fo P2 489, 006.
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As of December 31, 2023 Within 1 Year 1to 5 Years Over 5 Years Total

Financial liabilities:

Payable to customers P82,305,199 B— P Pa2,305 199

Payable to brokers 5,015 - = 5,015

Accounts payable® 595,033 - - 595,033

Lease liability 1,496,528 - - 1,496,528
PB4,401,775 P— P— P84.401,775

‘Excluded in other payables are payable to Government amounfing to P3,645 819,

4.8 Market Risk
Market risk is the risk of change in fair value of financial instruments from fluctuation in foreign
exchange rates (currency risk), market interest rates (interest rate risk) and market prices (price risk),
whether such change in price is caused by factors specific to the individual instrument or its issuer or
factors affecting all instruments traded in the market.

4.9 Price Risk
The Company is exposed to equity securities price risk on its marketable securities classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. Senior management is responsible for reviewing
trading positions, exposures, profits and losses, and trading strategies.

The following table shows the information relating to the Company's exposure to price risk on its
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as of December 31, 2024 and 2023:

2024
Number of shares Closing prices Market value
Security Bank Corporation (SECB) 1,274,917 P37 £110,917,779
The Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc. (PSE) 240,000 164 39,360,000
Aboitiz Equity Ventures, Inc. (AEV) 90,300 34 3,101,805
Bank of the Philippine Islands (BPI) 20,000 122 2,440,000
P155,6819,584

2023
Number of shares Closing prices Market value
Security Bank Corporation {SECB) 1,274,917 PT2 51,156,566
The Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc. (PSE) 240,000 170 40,800,000
#131,956 566

4.10 Interest Rate Risk

This is the risk that future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates.

The Company's cash and cash equivalents include short-term investments. These investmenis are
made for varying periods of between one day and one month depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Company, and earn interest at the respective short-term investment rates.

The Company has no short-term investments that is subject to interest rate risk as of December 31,
2024 and December 31, 2023.

4.11 Capital Management Policies
The primary objective of the Company's capital management policies is to support its business and
maximize shareholder value in terms of returns on investments and increased stock value,

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in the light of changes in
economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust or defer
dividend payment to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes during the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023,
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The Company considers the following as capital;

2024 2023
Share capital P105,000,000 105,000,000
Retained samings 180,913,478 162,178,121
Remeasuremant losses on defined benefit plan — net of tax (383,126) (5.394.774)
P285,530,352 P261,783,347

5. Cash and Cash Equivalents

This account consists of:

2024 2023
Cash on hand 10,000 10,000
Cash in bank 68,481,557 76,260,866
Shor-term investment 60,000,000 90,000,000
ICash and cash equivalents 128,491,557 P166,270,866

Cash in banks earns interest based on daily bank deposit rates. Short-term investments are made for
varying periods of between one day and one month depending on the immediate cash reguirements of the
Company, and earn interest at the respective shori-term investment rates.

In compliance with Securities Regulation Code (SRC) Rule 49.2 (Customer Protection and Custody
Securities), the Company maintains a special reserve bank account included in cash and cash equivalents
for the exclusive benefit of its customers amounting to P6,600,023 and 4,441,374 in 2024 and 2023,
respectively. The Company's reserve requirement is determined weekly based on the SEC's prescribed
computations.

Interest income earned in 2024 and 2023 amounted to P40,567 and P96,500, respectively.

. Financial Asset at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss

This account consists of:

2024
Number of shares Glusing prices  Market value
Security Bank Corporation (SECB) 1,274,917 Pa7 P110,917.779
The Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc. (PSE) 240,000 164 39,360,000
Aboitiz Equity Ventures, Inc. (AEV) 90,300 34 3,101,805
Bank of the Philippine Islands (BPI) 20,000 122 2,440,000
155,819,584
2023
Number of shares  Closing prices  Market value
Security Bank Corporation (SECB) 1,274,917 B P72 Po1,156,566
The Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc. (PSE) 240,000 170 40,800,000
P131,058 568

This account was revalued using the prevailing market prices as of the statements of financial position
date by reference to the closing prices as quoted in the PSE as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, The
Company recegnized a net unrealized gain ameounting to 18,084,090 and a net unrealized loss amounting
to #16,881,213 in 2024 and 2023, respectively (Note 20). For tax purposes the unrealized gainfloss is not
taxable/deductible until it is realized, that is, when the securities are eventually sold.

In 2024 and 2023, the Company sold portion of the securities resulting to recognition of realized loss
amaounting to 158,479 and P37,315, respectively (Note 20).
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P5,230,737 and P86,230,805, respectively (Note 20).

earned from these securities amounted to

7. Receivable from Customers and Other Receivables

This account consists of:

2024 2023

Receivable from
Customers — net P169,286,128 P83,970,325
Clearing house 122,977,335 =
Brokers - 7,128,550
Others 40,200 21,580
P292,303,663 91,120,455

Receivable from customers includes amounts due on cash transactions for equities purchased in the
market. Securities owned by customers are held as collateral for amounts due from customers.

2024
Money Security valuation

balance Long Short

With security value
Maore than 250% #98,791,044 P42,106,1587,391 [
Between 200% and 250% - - -
Between 150% and 200% 260,214 445,200 -
Between 100% and 150% 50,376,376 50,713,680.00 -
Less than 100% 21,500,868 21,299,560 -
Unsecured - - -
Less allowance for credit loss — receivable 170,928,502 42 178,655,831 -
from customers cash account (Note 3) (1,642,374) - -
P169,286,128  P42,178,655,831 P-

2023
Money Security valuation
balance Long Short

With security value
More than 250% P52,904,128 P28,337,943.331 P-
Between 200% and 250% == — =
Between 150% and 200% 20,308,065 36,303,360 -
Between 100% and 150% 100,400 102,800 -
Less than 100% 9,135,935 8,081,640 -
Unsecured 1,694,268 — =
Less allowance for credit loss — receivable 84,342,796 28,383.431131 -
from customers cash account (Note 3) {372.472) — i
83,970,324 P28 383431131 r—

Portion of the receivables pertains to receivable from margin customers. Customers under these account
have specific credit terms and are required to maintain the value of their collateral within a specific level.
Once the value of the collateral falls below this level, customers may pay interest charges based on the
prevailing market rates to be compounded monthly, as well as service charges, commission and other fees
for the Company's execution of transactions to purchase and sell securities, put and call options, amang

others.
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A reconciliation of the allowance for credit loss — receivable from customers cash account at the beginning

and end of 2024 and 2023 is shown below:

2024 2023

Balance at beginning of year P372,472 181
Reacovery of allowance for credit losses 1,269,902 372,291
Balance at end of year #1.642,374 P372 472

. Prepayments and Other Current Assets
This account consists of:

2024 2023

Prepaid income tax P8,520,018 P7,050,343
Refundable depasit 978,464 978,464
Prepaid VAT 147,563 117,227
Deferred input VAT - 1,117
Other prepayments 2,122,936 1,845,942
P11,768,981 P10,502,093

Other prepayments represent paid subscriptions from different service providers to be amortized over the

covered period,

. Property and Equipment — net

This account consists of:

December 31, Additions/ Disposals/ December 31,
2023  Depreciation Adjustments 2024
Cost:
Transportation equipment P8,103,589 #1,108,929 P- #9,212,518
Office equipment 5,128,666 656,607 - 5,785,273
Furniture and fixtures 2,378,348 - - 2,378,348
Leasehold improvemeants 3,002,561 - s 3,002,561
Right-of-use asset 1,795,932 1,802,547 {1,795,932) 1,802,547
20,409,096 3,568,083 {1,795,932) 22,181,247
Accumulated depreciation:
Transportation equipment 5,702,289 543,848 - 6,246,135
Office equipment 4,768,072 791,465 - 5,559,537
Furniture and fixtures 2,378,348 - - 2,378,348
Leasehold improvements 3,002,561 - - 3,002,561
Right-of-use assetl 1,722 176 374,181 {1,795,932) 300,425
17,573,446 1,709,492 {1,795,932) 17,487,006
P2,835,650 P4,694,241
Dacember 31, Additions/ Disposals/ December 31,
2022  Depreciation Adjustments 2023
Cost:
Transportation equipment P5,661.588 72,442 000 P- #8,103,589
Office equipment 4,304,295 824,3M - 5,128,666
Furniture and fixtures 2,378,348 - - 2,378,348
Leasehold improvemeants 3,002 561 - - 3,002,561
Right-of-use assel 1,809,017 1,795,932 (1,809,917) 1,795,932
17,156,710 5,062,303 (1,809,917) 20,409,096

{farward|)
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Transportation equiprment 5,369,897 332,302 - 5,702,289
Diffice equipment 4,155,899 612,173 - 4,768,072
Furniture and fixtures 2,364,843 13,505 - 2,378,348
Leasehold improvements 3,002,561 - - 3,002,561
Right-of-use asset 1,724,507 1,807,586 (1,809,917} 1,722,176
16,617,707 2,765,656 (1,809,917) 17,673,446

P538,003 F2,835650

The Company recognized right-of-use asset for leases of office space. The lease typically run for a period
of one year. The lease contain an option to renew at the end of the lease term and is being subjected to
reviews to reflect current market rentals. The renewal option provides operational flexibility in managing the
leased asset portfolio and aligns the business needs of the Company. The amortization period of the
depreciation of the right-of-use asset was based on the lease term of the leased asset (Note 14).

Mo items of property and equipment were mortgaged as securities for liabilities as of December 31, 2024
and 2023.

Management believes that there is no indication that an impairment has occurred on its property and
equipment.

10. Trading Right

On August 8, 2001, the SEC approved the PSE conversion plan from a non-stock corporation to a stock
corporation. As a result of the conversion plan on January 2002, each member-broker received 50,000
commaon shares of the PSE at P1 par value and trading right, which gives continued access to the trading
facilities of the PSE. The trading right shall be pledged in favor of PSE to guarantee the Company's faithful
compliance of its obligations with the PSE.

The original cost of the PSE trading right of B2, 100,000 was allocated between the PSE trading right and
the 50,000 shares received from PSE on the basis of their respective fair market values as of the time of
the conversion of PSE from a non-stock corporation to a stock corporation. The amount allocated to the
50,000 PSE shares was P1,050,000 and the remaining balance of the same amount was allocated to the
trading right. The 50,000 PSE shares are included in financial asset measured at fair value though profit or
loss.

In 2003, the Company amortized the exchange trading right using siraight-line basis over its useful life of
20 years, Beginning January 1, 2005, the Company adopted PAS 38, which does not permit the
amortization of trading right which has indefinite life. At end of December 31, 2005, trading right was
carried at original cost of 1,050,000 less amortization of 105,000,

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the net carrying amount of trading right is £945,000.
This trading right is not impaired as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 considering that the Company is

generaling positive cashflows and has reported a positive net income in the prior years. Management
projected that it will continue to generate positive cashflows from operations in the next five years.



11. Other Assets

This account consists of;

2024 2023

Investment in stock P6,870,000 B6,670 000
Other asset - CTGF 555,917 -
P7,425.917 6,870,000

Investment in stock pertains to the investments of the Company in golf clubs which are unquoted.

Other asset — CTGF refers to the refundable balance of the Company's contributions to the Clearing and
Trade Guaranty Fund that is recognized as an asset in accordance to SCCP Memo No. 01-0718. These
amendments, allow clearing members to receive refunds of their CTGF contributions upon cessation of
business andfor termination of their membership with SCCP, provided all liabilities to SCCP at the time of

termination are fully satisfied.

12. Payable to Customers

This account consists of:

2024
Money Security valuation
balance Long Short
Mo money balances P~ P50,821,339,875 P-
With money balances 293,667,323 19,345,548 491 175,194,094
P293,667,323 PT70,166,888,366 P175,194,094
2023
Money Security valuation
balance Long Short
Mo money balances P—  P44,735.211,581 -
With money balances 82,305,199 3,066,819,345 12,250,095
P82,305,199 P47,802,030,926 P12,250,095
13. Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses
This account consists of:

2024 2023

Government payables:
VAT payable P530,895 #1,438,601
Withholding tax payable on compensation 341,818 250,921
585, Philhealth and HDMF payable 174,175 154,447
Expanded withholding tax payable 53,819 34,612
Deferred output VAT payable 26,331 114,436

Accrued expenses:

Stock transaction tax 1,361,968 1,662,802
SCCP fees 492,272 171,166
Stock exchange dues and fees 175,638 47,363
Professional and commission 131,306 109,351
Research fees - 179,603
Other payables 2,869,531 87,550
P6,157,753 #4,240,852
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14. Lease Liabilities
Lease liabilities are presented in the statement of financial position as follows:

2024 2023
Current P1,502,059 1,496,528

The Company leases its office premises and several parking spaces from Lucy Properties, Inc. for a period
of ane (1) year from November 1, 2023 up to October 31, 2024, renewable upon mutual agreement with
the lessor. The Company has refundable and security deposits amounting to 978,484 and are shown as
part of other current assets in the statements of financial position.

In 2024, the lease was renewed for a one-year period from November 1, 2024 to October 1, 2025, The
Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments unpaid at that date,
discounted using the Company’s incremental borrowing rate of 5.7674% and 6.5828% for the years
December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

The lease is reflected in the statements of financial position as a right-of-use asset and a lease liability.
Variable lease payments which do not depend on an index or a rate (such as lease payments based on a
percentage of Company sales) are excluded from the initial measurement of the lease liability and asset.

The lease liabilities are secured by the related underlying asset. Future minimum lease payments at
December 31, 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

As of December 31, 2024 Minimum lease payments due
Within one More than
year one year Total
Lease payments P1,542,050 P— $1,542,050
Finance charges (39,991) - {39,991)
Net present values P1 .50@.059 P- #1,502,059
As of December 31, 2023 Minimum lease payments due
Within one More than
year one year Total
Lease payments P1,542,050 - 1,542,050
Finance charges (45,522) —~ (45,522)
MNet present values 1,496,528 - 1,496,528

Interest expense on the payment of lease liability amounted to P53 444 and P42 837 in 2024 and 2023,
respeactively (Note 20),
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15. Income Taxes

15.1 Current Income Tax

The Company is subject to the Regular Corporate Income Tax (RCIT) or Minimum Caorporate Income

Tax (MCIT), whichever is higher,

15.1.1 Reqular Corporate Income Tax

The reconciliation of income tax expense computed at the statutory income tax rate of 25% for the
year ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 to actual income tax expense as shown in the statements

of comprehensive income are as follows:

2024 2023
Accounting income before income tax £21,940,977 P1.248,081
Permaneni differences:
Income subject to final tax (6,230,737) (6,230,805)
Interest income subject to final tax (2,568,289) (1,479,938)
Nondeductible representation expense (327,875) (281,372)
Mondeductible depreciation expense 8,400 60,617
Temporary differences:
Unrealized loss (gain) on marketible securites (18,084,090) 16,881,213
Actual rent expense (1,850,460) (1,850,460)
Bad debt provision 1,269,902 372,472
Retirement (1,116,740) (1,968,511)
Past service cost (T94,350) (794,350)
Amortization of right-of-use assets 374,181 1,807,586
Mondeductible interest expense - PFRS 16 53,444 42 837
Net foreign exchange loss {17,290) (17,648)
Taxable net income (7,342,927) 7,790,722
Regular corporale tax rate 25% 25%
Tax due P— 1,947 680
15.1.2 Minimum Corperate Income Tax
Details of the MCIT for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 are as follows:
2024 2023
Commission income P53,267, 318 #83,159,026
Deductible cost of services (41,461,598) (58,499,391)
Gross profit 11,805,720 24,659,635
Interest income on margin account 23,576 343,571
Other income 3,080,559 2,191,246
Unrealized foreign exchange gain in prior year (15,180) (2,468)
Taxable gross income #14,894,675 P27,191,984
Minimum Corporate Tax Rate 2% 1.5%
Provizion for current income tax 297,894 407,879

For the years ended, December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company is subjected to the minimum
corporate income tax and regular corporate income tax, respectively. Income tax payable of the

Company as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

2023 2022

Income tax due for the current year P297.894 1,947,680
Less: Creditable withholding taxes 8,817,912 9,907,023
(8.520,018) (7,950,343)
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Any excess of the MCIT over the normal income tax is carried forward annually and credited against
the normal income tax for the next three (3) succeeding taxable years.

Details of the Company's MCIT that can be credited against normal income tax due are as follows:

Year Incurred MCIT Expired Applied Balance
2024 P297,804 P |

Expiry Year
P297,8%94 2027

The Company has NOLCO which can be carried forward as a deduction for the next three consecutive
taxable years immediately following the year of such loss, under certain conditions, as provided under

Section 34(D) of the Tax Code.

Year Incurred NOLCO Expired Applied Balance Expiry Year
2024 P7 342 927 P PT,342 927 2027

15.2 Deferred Income Tax

The provision for (benefit from) deferred income tax charged in the statements of comprehensive

income comprises the following temporary differences:

2024 2023
Presented under Profit and Loss
Unrealized loss (gain) on held for trading securities P4,521,023 (P4,220,303)
NOLCO (1,835,732) -
Payment to retirement fund 510,000 510,000
Actual rent expense paid 462,615 462,615
Bad debt recovery (317,476) (93,118)
MCIT (297,894) -
Amortization of right-of-use assets {93,545) (451,897)
Amortization of past service cost {32,227) 178,074
Interest expense on lease liabilities (13,361) (10,709)
Prior year's foreign exhange loss deemed realized this year 3,795 617
Unrealized foreign exchange gain this year 528 3,795
Amounts credited to profit or loss P2,907,726 (P3,620,926)

2024 2023
Presented under Other Comprehensive Income
Actuarial gain or loss 6,682,198 #10,565
Effect of reduction of corporate tax rate due to CREATE Law {1,670,550) (2,641)
Amounts credited to OCI P5,011.648 BT 924
Significant components of the Company's net deferred tax liabilities are as follows:

2024 2023
Unrealized market gain on held for trading securities ®22,859,254 #18,338231
Accrual of retirement expense 1,938,039 (11,696)
NOLCO (1,835,732) -
Actual rent expense paid 462,615 462,615
Allowance for credit losses (410,640) (93,164)
MCIT (297,894) -
Unamortized past service cost (282,986) (481,574)
Amortization of right-of-use assets (93,536) (451,897)
Interest expense on lease liabilities (13,361) (10,709}
Unrealized gain on foreign exchange 9,351 5,028

P22 335110 #17.756,834
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16. Revenue

Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company's revenue with customers:

2024 2023
Retail P20,518117 P30,135,533
Institutional 32,749,201 53,023,483

P53,267,318 £83,159,026

The Company generates revenue through commissions earned from facilitating securities transactions for
its clients. On April 16, 2024, the SEC issued Memorandum Circular No. 7, Series of 2024, which removed
the minimum broker's commission requirement, granting brokers the flexibility to set their own commission
rates for stock trading transactions. As a result, for the year ended December 31, 2024, the Company
implemented commission rates ranging from 0.05% to 0.50%, compared to the fixed rate of 0.25% applied
in 2023.

17.Cost of Services

This account consists of:

Note 2024 2023
Salaries and wages P12,660,672 PE,541,219
Subscription and periodicals 9,257,724 9,551,467
PDTC fees 6,812,756 6,831,919
Research fees 4,662,976 27,336,582
PSE fees 3,489,283 3,439,358
Commission expense 941,403 782,097
Employee retirement cost 19 923,260 82,054
5585, Philhealth and HDMF contributions 421,878 319,994
Transfer fees 274,581 386,620
Employees' welfare 105,975 88,600
SCCP fees 387,185

P39,550,508 P55,747,085

18. Administrative Expenses

This account consists of:

Notes 2024 2023
Salaries and allowances P8, 717,632 P8 186,619.00
Communication, light and water 2,084,932 1,485,934
Depreciation 9 1,709,492 2,765,656
Professional fees 1,516,714 555,714
Rent 1,243,115 1,244,646
Fuel and oil 903,245 620,025
Representation and entertainment B60,548 1,112,962
Insurance 688,702 582,966
S88, Philhealth, HDMF and other contributions 681,269 613,138
Office supplies 512,282 629,271
Taxes and licenses 27 338,689 392,894
Employees’ welfare 336,973 240,239
Repairs and maintenance 253,014 141,592

{Forward)
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Bank charges 124,784 130,067
Transportation and travel 90,846 45,793
Training and seminars 16,259 2,071
Miscellaneous expense 204,873 319,966

P20,283,369 19,089,753

19. Employee Retirement Costs

The Plan is non-contributory and of the defined benefit type which provides a retirement benefit ranging
from fifty percent (50%) to one hundred fifty percent (150%) of Plan Salary for every year of credited
service. The benefit is paid in a lump sum upon retirement or separation in accordance with the terms of
the Plan.

The Retirement Plan Trustee, as appointed by the Company in the Trust Agreement executed between the
Company and the duly appointed Retirement Plan Trustee, is responsible for the general administration of
the Retirement Plan and the management of the Retirement Fund. The Retirement Plan Trustee may seek
the advice of counsel and appoint an investment manager or managers to manage the Retirement Fund,
an independent accountant to audit the Retirement Fund and an actuary to value the Retirement Fund.

There was no plan amendment, curtailment, or setlement recognized in the financial years ended
December 31, 2024 and 2023,

There are no unusual or significant risks to which the Plan exposes the Company. However, in the event a
benefit claim arises under the Retirement Plan and the Retirement Fund is not sufficient to pay the benefit,

the unfunded portion of the claim shall immediately be due and payable from the Company to the
Retirement Fund.

The most recent actuarial valuations of plan assets and the present value of defined benefit obligation
were carried out at December 31, 2024 by Actuarial Exponents, Inc. The present value of the defined
benefit obligation, and the related current service cost for 2024 were based on the actuarial report.

The principal assumptions used for the purpose of actuarial valuations were as follows:

2024 2023
Discount rate 5.96% 7.41%
Salary increase rate 5.00% 8.00%

The valuation results were based on the employee data as of the valuation dates as provided by the
Company. The discount rate assumption was based on the BVAL benchmark market yields on government
bonds as of the valuation dates (or latest available) considering the average years of remaining working life
of the employees as the estimated term of the benefit obligation.

Amounts recognized in profit or loss in respect to this defined benefit plan are as follows:

2024 2023
Current service cost £919,794 B67.000
Interest expense on defined benefit obligation 3,466 15,054

Components of defined benefit costs recorded in profit or loss P923,.260 P82 054
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Amounts recognized in other comprehensive income in respect to this defined benefit plan are as follows:

2024 2023
Remeasurement income on return on plan assets
excluding interest income P32,278,723 P10,565
Actuarial loss arising from experience (27,705,138) -
Actuarial gain arising from financial assumptions 2,008,613 -
Total remeasurement losses (gain) on defined benefit plan 6,682,198 10,565
Income tax effect (1.670,550) (2,641)
Components of defined benefit costs recorded
in other comprehensive income P5,011,648 #7924

Remeasurement losses that are recorded in the statements of financial position include the following:

2024 2023
Beginning of year (P5,394,774) (P5,402,698)
Total remeasurement (gain) loss for the year 6,682,198 10,565
Total accumulated other comprehensive gain 1,287,424 {5,392,133)
Income tax effect (1,670,550) (2,641)

{(P383,126) (P5,394,774)

Under the net interest approach, service cost and net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset) are
both recognized in profit or loss, while remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability (asset) are
recognized outside profit or loss in other comprehensive income.

The amount included in the statements of financial pasition arising from the entity's obligation in respect of
its defined benefit plans is as follows:

2024 2023
Fair value of plan assets, ending P33,744,973 P—
Defined benefit obligation, ending (25,992,805) (46,770)
Met plan asset (liability) P7.752,168 (P46 770}

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation in the current year were as follows:

2024 2023
Defined benefit obligation, beginning P46,770 #2.015,281
Actuarial loss arising from experience 27,705,138 -
Actuarial gain arising from financial assumptions (2,008,613) (10,565)
Current service cost 919,794 67.000
Benefits paid from plan assets (673,750) -
Interest expense 3,466 15,054
Payment to the retirement benefit - (2,040,000}
Defined benefit abligation, ending P25,992,805 P46.770

Movements in the present value of the plan assets in the current year were as follows:

2024 2023

Fair value of plan assets, beginning P- P
Remeasurement losses on return on plan assets

excluding interest income 32,378,723 -

Contributions 2,040,000 =

Benefits paid from plan assets (673,750} =

Fair value of plan assets, ending P33,744,973 P-
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The major categories of plan assets at the end of the reporting period for each category, are as follows.

2024 2023

Cash on hand, checks and other cash items 2.04% 0.19%
Investment in government securities 63.79% 96.15%
Investment in other securities and debt instruments 8.99% 0.22%
Equity investments 1.50% 0.22%
Loans and receivables 0.49% 0.07%
Other aszels 23.19% 3.15%
100.00% 100.00%

The Retirement Trust Fund assets are valued by the fund manager at fair value using the mark-to-market
valuation. While no significant changes in asset allocation are expected in the next financial year, the

Retirement Plan Trustee may make changes at any time.

The remeasurement gain on plan assets were #6,682,198 and P10,565 in December 31, 2024 and 2023,

respectively.

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate
and expected salary increase. The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the

reasonable possible changes in the assumptions occuring at the end of the reporting period.

Changes in interest rates 2024 2023
+ 100 basis points 25,022,167 (P2,211,042)
- 100 basis points (25,022,167) 2,211,042
20. Other Income (Expenses) — net
Thiz account consists of:

Notes 2024 2023

Met unrealized gain (loss)
on held for trading securities 6 P18,084,090 (P16,881,213)
Dividend income 51 6,230,737 6,230,805
Interest income 2,591,865 1,823,508
Recovery of allowance for doubtful account (1,269,902) (372,472)
Loss on sale of financial asset 6 (158,479) (37,315}
Interest expense from lease liability 14 (53,444) (42,837)
Foreign exchange loss 2,110 15,180
Other income 3,080,559 2,191,246
P23,507,536 (P7.073.097)

Other income refers to the fees that the Company charges against the customers for the fees to Philippine

Depository and Trust Corp,

21.Earnings Per Share

Earnings per share is based on net income:

2024 2023
a. Met income P18,735,357 £2,922 327
b. Number of common shares outstanding 1,050,000 1,050,000
£. Basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share {a/b) P17.84 P2.78
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22 Retained Earnings

22.1 Appropriated Retained Earnings
(1) SRC Rule 49.1 (B), "Reserve Fund", (1) requires that every broker dealer shall annually appropriate
a certain minimum percentage of its audited profit after tax and transfer the same to Appropriated
Retained Earnings. Appropriation shall be 30%, 20%, and 10% of audited profit after tax for broker
dealers with unimpaired paid up capital of P10 million to P30 million, P30 million to P50 million and
above P50 million, respectively.

Unimpaired Paid-up Capital Minimum percentage of
{in million pesa) profit after tax

Between 10 to 30 30%

Between 30 to 50 20%

More than 50 10%

{2) The amount appropriated shall not be available for payment of dividends.

(3) Where in any financial year the Broker Dealer's paid up capital is impaired, the Broker Dealer, is
required to transfer from the Appropriated Retained Earnings to the capital account an amount
equivalent fo the impairment. Such amount so transferred out shall not be available for payment of
dividends.

(4) Consistent with the general usage under SRC Rule 28.1 (E) (v), the term "Unimpaired Paid Up
Capital” shall refer to the firm's total paid up capital less any deficiency in the retained eamings.

For this purpose, the term "Paid Up Capital” shall include the following:

. Capital contributions of partners or par value of stated value of common stock
. Payment made on subscribed common stock

. Par or stated value of preferred share

. Payment made on subscribed preferred share

. Common stock to be distributed (arising from stock dividend distribution)

. Additional paid in capital for both common and preferred stocks

. Donated capital

O -0 O op

(5) A Broker Dealer may submit to the Commission for approval its own capital build up plan in lieu of
the reguirements of this provision.

(6) Motwithstanding the requirements of this section, the commission may prescribe a different capital
build up for all broker dealers, specifically those incurring net losses during the period, which may
include the programmed infusion of fresh capital.

In compliance with the above rule, the Company approriated additional retained earnings amounting to
P1,873,536 for the year 2024.

22.2 Unappropriated Retained Earnings
The unappropriated retained earnings amounted to 103,808,235 and P86,946 414 as of December
31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. This includes the accumulated unrealized (losses) gains arising from
the fair valuation of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of 3,395 879 and 10,167 188 in
2024 and 2023, respectively, net of 25% tax,
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23 Risk Based Capital Adeqguacy

The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to increase shareholders value and
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business. The Company sets strategies in response to
both changes in economic conditions in general and the industry in which the Company belongs and
internal factors. Mo changes were made in the objectives, policies and processes during the years 2024

On December 30, 2003, the SEC passed the Amended Implementing Rules and Regulations (IRR) of the
SRC effective February 28, 2004. Significant changes include among others, revisions on the terms and
conditions for registration and subsegquent renewal of license applicable to both exchange trading
participants and non-exchange broker dealers as follows: (a) to allow a net capital of P2.5 million or 2.5%
of aggregate indebtedness, whichever is higher, for broker dealers dealing only in proprietary shares and
not holding securities, (b) to allow SEC to set a different net capital requirement for those authorized to use
the risk based capital adequacy model, and (¢) to require unimpaired paid-up capital of 100 million for
broker dealers, which are either first time registrant or those acquiring existing broker dealers firms and will
participate in a registered clearing agency; P10 million plus surety bond for existing broker dealer not
engaged in market making transactions; and P2.5 million for broker dealers dealing only in proprietary
shares and not holding securities.

On November 11, 2004, the SEC approved Memorandum Circular Mo. 16 which provides the guidelines on
the adoption in the Philippines of the Risk Based Capital Adequacy (RBCA) Framework for all registered
brokers dealers in accordance with Securities Regulation Code (SRC). These guidelines cover the
following risks: (a) position or market risk (b) credit risks such as counterparty, settlement, large exposure,
and margin financing risks and (c) operational risk. Among others, the RBCA rules provide for specific
guidelines on the treatment of new subordinated loan agreements and investment in PSE shares,

The Company's capital pertains to equity per books adjusted for deferred tax assets and assets not readily
convertible into cash,

The RECA ratio of the Company as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

2024 2023
Equity eligible for net liquid capital P288,350,677  P267.178,121
Less ineligible assets 33,135,099 22,260,727
Met Iiguid capital (NLC) P255,215.578 P244 917,394
Operational risk P22,555,066 P23,575,172
Pasition risk 53,986,612 46,188,567
Large exposure risk 57,413,982 27,686,802
Total risk capital requirements (TRCR) P133,955,660 P97 450,632
Aggregate indebtedness (A} P297,818,108 _ P130,803242

2024 2023
5% of Al P14,890,905 6,540,162
Required NLC 14,890,905 6,540,162
Met risk based capital excess 240,324,672 238,377,232
Ratio of Al to NLC 117% 53%
RBCA ratio 191% 251%

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company is in compliance with the required RBCA ratio.

The following are the definition of terms used in the above computation,

1. Ineligible assels. These pertain to fixed assets and assets which cannot be readily converted into

cash.
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2. Operational risk requirements . The amount required to cover a level of operational risk which is the
exposure associated with the commencing and remaining in business arising separately from
exposures covered by other risk requirements. It is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed
internal processes, people and systems which include, among others, risks of fraud, operational or
settlerment failure and shortage of liquid resources or from external events.

3. Position risk requirement. The amount necessary to accommodate a given level of position risk.
Position risk is a risk to which a broker dealer is exposed to and which arises from securities held by it
as a principal or in its propriety or dealer account.

4. Large exposure risk requirement. The additional amount required to accommodate a given level of
large exposure to either a particular counterparty or a single equity. Large exposure risk is the risk of
financial loss arising from a significant exposure to a single counterparty or in securities issued by a
single issuer relative to liquid capital or to the total value of those securities on issue,

5 Aggregste indebtedness . Total money liabilities of a broker arising in connection with any transaction
whatsoever, and includes, among other things, money borrowed, money payable against securities
loaned and securities failed to receive, the market value of securities borrowed to the extent to which
no equivalent value is paid or credited (other than the market value of margin securities borrowed from
customers and margin securities borrowed from non-customers), customers' and non-customers' free
credit balances, and credit balances in customers' and non-customers’ accounts having short positions
in securities subject to the exclusions provided in the said SEC Memorandum.

24.Related Party Disclosures

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions. This includes:
individuals owning, directly or indirectly, through one or more intermediaries, control, or are controlled by,
or under comman contral with, the Company; associates; and individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an
interest in the voting power of the Company that gives them significant influence over the Company and
close members of the family of any such individual.

The key management personnel of the Company are considered to be related parties.

Receivable from and payable to related parties are included as part of receivable from and payable to
customer accounis. Related party receivable from and payable to customers are non-interest bearing and
are fully secured by shares of stock and in the normal course of business are normally required to be
settled in cash within 4 days from the transaction date (transaction date plus 3 days).

Statements of December 31, December 31,
Financial Position Terms and Conditions Met additions 2024 2023
Stockholder
Receivable from Secured by investment P - P—
Customers portfolio; payable in cash
upon demand
Pavable to Customers 179,354 736,561 557,207

Commission income earned from related parties amounted to 348 155 and 202 268 as of December 31,
2024 and 2023, respectively.
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24.1 Compensation of Key Management Personnel
The key management personnel of the Company are considered to be related parties. Short-term
employee benefits charged to operations amounted to 10,524,042 in 2024 and P4,879,600 in 2023.

There are no agreements between the Company and any of its directors and key officers providing for
benefits upon termination of employment, except for such benefits to which they may be entitied under
the Company's retirement plan.

25, Fair Value Measurement

The methods and assumptions used by the Company in estimating the fair value of the financial
instruments are:

25.1 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Carrying values approximate fair values at year-end due to the relative short-term maturities of these
assets.

25.2 Receivables
Carrying amounts approximate fair values due to the relative short-term maturities of these assets.

25.3 Financial Asset at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
The fair values are based on guoted prices published in the market.

25.4 Other Assets
The fair values approximate its cost since these are unquoted equity investments.

25.5 Payables
Carrying amounts approximate fair values at year-end due to the short-term maturities of these
obligations.

The following table summarizes the carrying amounts and estimated fair values of the Company’s financial
asseis and liabilities as of December 31, 2024 and 2023:

2024 2023
Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated
value fair value value fair value
Financial assets:
Cash and cash eguivalents P128,491,557 P128,491,557 P166,270,866 P166,270,866
Fair value through proft or loss 155,819,584 155,819,584 131,956,566 131,956,566
Receivable from customers 169,286,128 169,286,128 83,970,325 83,870,325
Receivable from clearing house 122,977,335 122,977,335 - -
Receivable from brokers - - 7,128,550 7,128,550
Other receivables 40,200 40,200 21,580 21,580
Other assets 11,768,981 11,768,981 10,902,083 10,902,093
P588,383,785 P588B,383,785 P400,249,880 P400,248,080
2024 2023
Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimatad
value fair value value fair value
Financial liabilities:
Payable to customers P293,667,323 P293,667,323 Pa2,305,199 P82,305,199
Payable to clearing house - - 43,266,085 43,266,085
Payable to brokers 8,514 8,514 5,015 5015
Accounts payable 3,668,747 3,668,747 595,033 595,033
Lease liabilities 1,502,059 1,502,059 1,496 528 1,496,528
P298,846,643 298,846,643 127 667,860 127 667,860




25.6 Fair Value Hierarchy

The Group uses the following hierarchy in determining and disclosing the fair value of financial

instruments by valuation technique:

» Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1);
= Those involving inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset

or liability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices) (Level 2); and

e Those with inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data

{unobservable inputs) (Level 3).

The foliowing table shows the Company's financial instruments carried at fair value as of December 31,

2024 and 2023 based on Level 1, 2 and 3:

2024
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assets:
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss:
Cash and cash equivalents P128.491,557 P- - 128,491,557
Fair value through proft or
loss 155,819,584 - = 155,819,584
Financial assets at amortized cost:
Receivable from customers - 169,286,128 169,286,128
Receivable from clearing
house - 122,977,335 - 122,977,335
Receivable from brokers - 803,200 - 803,200
Other receivables - 40,200 - 40,200
Other assets - - 7.425917 7,425,917
P284,311,141  P293,206,863 P7,425917 P584.943,921
Financial Liabilities:
Financial liabilities al amorlized cost:
Payable to customers - #293,667,323 P- #293,667,323
Payable to brokers - 8,514 - 8,514
Accounts payable - 3,668,747 - 3,668,747
Laase liabilities - 1,502,059 - 1,502,059
P- P298,846,643 P- P298,846,643
2023
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assats:
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss:
Cash and cash equivalents P166,270,866 P- P- P166,270 866
Fair value through proft or
loss 131,956,566 - - 131,956,566
Financial assets at amortized cost;
Receivable fram customers - 83,970,325 - 83,970,325
Receivable from brokers - 903,200 - 903,200
Other receivables - 21,580 - 21,580
Other assets = 2 6,870,000 8,870,000
P208 227 432  PB4,805,105 P6,870,000 P380,002 537

{(Forward)



Financial Liabilities:

Financial liabilities at amortized cost:

-30-

Payable to customers P— P82.305,199 P P82.305,199
Payable to clearing house - 43,266,085 - 43,266,085
Payable to brokers - 5.015 - 3,013
Accounts payable - 585,033 - 585,033
Lease liabilities - 1,496,528 - 1,496,528
P-  P127,667,860 [ P127 667,860
26. Supplemental Notes to Statement of Cash Flows
Lease
Liabilities
Balance at December 31, 2022 1,508,219
Changes of financing cash flows in 2023
Payment of lease liability (1,807,623)
Equity-related other changes in 2023
Additional lease liability 1,795,932
Total equity-related other changes 1,795,932
Balance at December 31, 2023 1,496,528
Changes of financing cash flows in 2024
Payment of lease liability (1,797,016)
Equity-related other changes in 2024
Additional lease liability 1,802,547
Total equity-related other changes 1,502,059
Balance at December 31, 2024 P1,502.,059

27 Supplementary Information Required by the Bureau of Internal Revenue

In addition to the disclosures mandated under PFRS, and such other standards and/ or conventions as
may be adopted, companies are required by the BIR to provide in the notes to the financial statements,
certain supplementary information for the taxable year. The amounts relating to such information may not
necessarily be the same with those amounts disclosed in the financial statements which were prepared in
accordance with PFRS. The following is the tax information required for taxable year ended December 31,
2024,

I. Based on RR No. 15-2010

A. Value Added Tax (VAT)

2024
Tax Base Amount
Sales to privates P56,643,277 P6,797,193
Sales to Government 489,623 58,755
Total sales/ Output VAT #57,132900  P6.855948

Input VAT

Beginning of the year P117,227
Current year's domestic purchase of services 2,443,599
Input Tax on sales to Government closed to income -
Total allowable input taxes for the year 2,560,826
5% Creditable VAT withheld on sales to Government 24,481
Claims for tax credit/ refund and other adjustments (2,437,744)

Balance at end of the year

P147,563
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2023

Tax Base Amount
Sales to privates P82 951478 #0954 177
Sales to Government 2417919 290,150
Total sales/ Output VAT P85, 360 397 P10,244 327

Input VAT
Beginning of the year #350,814
Current year's domestic purchase of services 2,299,872
Input Tax on sales to Government closed to income 35.390
Total allowable input taxes for the year 2,686,075
5% Creditable VAT withheld on zales to Government 120,896
Claims for tax credit! refund and other adjustments (2,689 744)
Balance at end of the year P117,227

B. Withholding Taxes
2024 2023
Final withholding taxes P3,675,623 P7,963,204
Expanded withholding taxes 571,573 537,281
Withholding taxes on compensation 3,200,151 1,538,093
P7.,447 347 P10,038 667
C. All Other Taxes (Local and National)

2024 2023
Business permit #189,428 243 439
Residence certificate 10,500 10,500
Annual registration 500 500
Others 138,261 138,455
#338,689 Pa52 894

D. Taxes on Importation
In calendar year 2024 and 2023, the Company has not imported goods for business use. No
customs duties and tariff fees were accrued or paid during the year.

E. Excise Tax
The Company does not have excise tax paid in 2024 and 2023 since it does not have any
transactions which are subject o excise tax.

F. Documentary Stamp Tax
The Company does not have documentary stamp tax in calendar year 2024 and 2023.

G. Tax Assessment
The Company has no pending final assessment under the administration of the BIR nor other tax
cases under litigation and/or prosecution in courts outside the BIR.

28 Supplementary Information Required Under Revenue Regulations No. 34-2020

RR 34-2020 prescribes the guidelines and procedures on the submission of BIR Form Neo. 1709, transfer
pricing documentation (TPD) and other supporting documents for related party transactions.

The Company is not required to prepare and submit TPD and other supporting documents as the
Company did not meet the materiality thresholds under Section 3 of RR Mo, 34-2020,



MENDOZA

Tugano & Co., CPAs

16th Floor, The Salcedo Towsars 169
HY. de la Costa Street, Salcedo
Village, Makati City, 1227 Philippines
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SUPPLEMENTAL STATEMENT
OF INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Asiasec Equities, Inc.

8th Floor, Chatham House, 116 Valero corner,
V.A. Rufino Street, Salcedo Village, Makati City

We have audited the financial statements of Asiasec Equities, Inc. for the year ended December 31,
2024 on which we have rendered the attached report dated February 14, 2025.

Our audits was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as
a whole. The accompanying supplementary schedules required by paragraph 7, Part || of Revised
Securities Regulation Code (SRC) Rule 68 (Annex 68-J), Reconciliation of Retained Earnings
Available for Dividend Declaration, and Schedule of Financial Soundness Indicators are the
responsibility of the Company's management. These schedules are presented for purposes of
complying with Revised SRC Rule 68 (2019}, and are not part of the basic financial statements.
These schedules have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial staterments and, in our opinion, fairly state, in all material respects, the information required
to be set forth therein in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

For the Firm: MENDOZA TUGANO & CO., CPAs

PA Certificate Ng/ 118635
BOA accreditation No. 9682/P-003
Valid from May 08, 2024 to July 18, 2026
TIN 249-790-835
BIR Accreditation No. 08-008188-003-2024,
December 03, 2024, valid until December 02, 2027
PTR No. 10473024, January 6, 2025, Makati City

February 14, 2025




SCHEDULE |

ASIASEC EQUITIES, INC.
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN LIABILITIES
SUBORDINATED TO CLAIMS OF GENERAL CREDITORS
DECEMBER 31, 2024

There are no liabilities subordinated to claims of general creditors.



ASIASEC EQUITIES, INC.

COMPUTATION OF RISK BASED CAPITAL

SCHEDULE Il

ADEQUACY REQUIREMENT/ RATIO PURSUANT TO

SRC Rule 49.1-1
DECEMBER 31, 2024

| Assets

P609,201,111

Liabilities

320,850,434

Equity as per books

288,350,677

Adjustments to Equity per books

Add (Deduct):

Allowance for market decline

Subordinated Liabilities

Unrealized Gain / { Loss ) in proprietary accounts

Deferred Income Tax

Revaluation Reserves

Deposit for Future Stock Subscription (No application with SEC)

Minority Interest

Total Adjustments tc Equity per books

Equity Eligible For Net Liquid Capital

288,350,677

Contingencies and Guarantees

| Deduct: Contingent Liability

Guarantees or indemnities

| Ineligible Assets

a. Trading Right and all Other Intangible Assets (net)

945,000 |

b. Intercompany Receivables

c. Fixed Assets, net of accumulated and excluding those used as
collateral

4,694,241

d. All Other Current Assets

10,830,717

e. Securities Not Readily Marketable

6,870,000

f. Negative Exposure (SCCP)

508,592

g. MNotes Receivable (non-irade related)

h. Interest and Dividends Receivables outstanding for more than 30 days

i. _Ineligible Insurance claims

|._Ineligible Deposits

k. Short Security Differences

l. Long Security Differences not resolved prior to sale

m. Other Assets including Equity Investment in PSE

9,286,549

Total ineligible asseis

33,135,089

(Forward)



Less:
Operational Risk Regt (Schedule ORR-1) 22,555,066
Position Risk Reqt (Schedule PRR-1) 53,986,612
Counterparty Risk (Schedule CRR-1 and detailed schedules) e
Large Exposure Risk (Schedule LERR-1, LERR-2, LERR-3)
LERR io a single client (LERR-1) 23,519,228
LERR to a single debt (LERR-2) =
LERR to a single issuer and group of companies (LERR-3) 33,894,754

Net RBCA Margin (NLC-TRCR) 121,259,918

Liabilities 320,850,434

Add: Deposit for Future Stock Subscription (No application with SEC) —
Less: Exclusions from Aggregate Indebtedness

Subordinated Liabilites =

Loans secured by securities =

Loans secured by fixed assets =

Others 23,032 327

Total adjustments to Al {23,032,327)

| Aggregate Indebtedness 297,818,108

5% of £ ggre gate |HBhl'Bd!‘tBBS

14,890,905




SCHEDULE 11l

ASIASEC EQUITIES, INC.
INFORMATION RELATING TO THE POSSESSION OR
CONTROL REQUIREMENTS UNDER ANNEX F OF
SRC Rule 49.2-1
DECEMBER 31, 2024

Customer’s fully paid securities and excess margin securities not in the broker's or dealer's
possession or control had been issued as of the report date but for which the required action was
not taken by respondent within the frame specified under SRC 49.2-1:

Market valuations: NIL
Customers' fully paid securities and excess margin securities for which instructions to reduce to
possession or control had not been issued as of the report date excluding items arising from

“temporary lags which result from normal business operations” as permitted under SRC 49.2-1:

Market valuations: NIL



SCHEDULE IV

ASIASEC EQUITIES, INC.
COMPUTATION FOR DETERMINATION OF
RESERVE REQUIREMENTS UNDER ANNEX G OF
SRC Rule 49.2-1
DECEMBER 31, 2024

Particulars Credit Debit
1. Free credit balance and other credit balance in customers' security accounts 797,938,276.51
2. Monies borrowed collateralized by the secunties carried for the account of customers -
3. Monies payable against customers’ securities lpaned. -
4. Customers’ secunties failed to receme -
5. Customer balances in firm accounts which are attributable to principal sales to customer. -
6. Market Value of stock dvidends, stock splits and similar distributions recevable -
oulstanding over 30 calendar days old.
7. Market Value of the shon security count dfferences over 30 calendar days old E

8. Market Value of shott securities and credits (not to be offset by long or by debits) in all -
suspense accounts over 30 calendar days.

9. Market Value of securities which are in transfer in excess of 40 calendar days and have -
not been confirmed to be in transfer by the transfer agent or the 1ssuer during the 40 days.

10. Debi balances in customers’ cash or margin accounts excluding unsecured accounts 289 141 533 28
and accounts doubtiul of collection.

11. Secunties borrowed to effectuate short sales by customer and secunbies borowed -
to make delwery on customers’ secunties failed to deliver

12 Failed to deliver customers’ secunties not oider than 30 calendar days.

13, Others

Total 202039276 51 | 280 141,533.28




ASIASEC EQUITIES, INC.
RESERVE FORMULA WORKSHEET
December 31, 2024

1 . Free Credit balances and Other Credit Balances in Customer Securities Accounts

Unadjusted trial balance amount

293,675.837.12

A, Additions:

1. Bank Account Overdrafis/]

2. Credit balances in customer omnibus accounts

3. Any other customer credit balance not accounted for elsewhere (explain nature)

Subtotal 5
B . Deductions:
I. Credit Balances in the accounts of non customers such as T36,560.61
general partners and principal officers
2. Credit balances in customers' cash accounts arising from the
sale of a security not delivered if the securities are purchased by
the broker-dealer for its own account and have not been resold
Subtotal 736.560.61

Adjusted total line item #1

202.939.276.51

2 . Monies Borrowed Collateralized by Securities carried for the Accounts of
Customers

Unadjusted trial balance amount customer loan

Unadjusted trial balance amount commingled loan/2

Adjusted total line item #2

3 . Monies Payable Against Securities Loaned

Unadjusted trial balance amount

A . Additions:
1. The amount by which the market value of customers securities
loaned exceed the collateral value received from lending os such
securities

Adjusted total line item #3

4 . Customer Securities Failed to Receive (as Determined by Allocation or Specific
Identification)

Unadjusted Balance:

A . Additons:

I. The amount by which the market value by which fails to receive
cutstanding for more than 34 calendar days exceed their contract
value/3

2. Clearing Accounits with net credit balances attributable to
customers transactions, (Clearing Corporations)

3. Unsecured customer short positions which allocate to customer
lang positions/4

4. Any other credit not accounted for elsewhere in the formula

Subtotal

Adjusted total line item #4




5 . Credit balances in Firm Accounts which are Attributable to
Principal Sales to Customers/S

6 . Market Value of Stock Dividends and Splits Outstanding Over 30
Calendar days/5/6

7 . Market Value of Short Security Count Differences over 30 calendar
days old (not to be offset by long count differences)

& . Market Value of Short Securities and Credits (not to be offset by loans
or debits) in all Suspense Accounts over 30 calendar days old

1. Credit Balances Only

2. Security Positions Only / 5

3. Security Positions with Related Balances / 5/ 7

Adjusted total line item #8

9 . Market Value of Securities in Transfer in Excess of 40 Calendar Days which have
not been confirmed to be in transfer by the Transfer Agent of the issuer during 40 days

Agpregate Credit Ttems

292,939.276.51

10 . Debit Balances in custemers' cash and margin accounts excluding
Unsecured Accounts and Accounts Doubtful of Collection

Unadjusted trial balance

170,928,301.87

A . Additions:

1. Debit balance in customer omnntbus accounts

2. Any other customer debit balance not accounted for elsewhere (explain nature)
others
due clearing house

122.977,335.29

Subtotal

122,977,335.29

B . Deductions:

1. Unsecured balances and accounts doubtful of collection

1,843 68233

1. Debit balances in the accounts of non-customers such as
gencral partners and principal officers

3. Reduction of margin debits for undue concentration of collateral/8

4. Deficits in customer-related omnibus accounts/9

5. Debit Balances in accounts of household members and
affiliated members/10

6. Reduction if unduly concentrated margin account balances/11

7. Reduction of debit balances of sccounts jointly owned by
customers and non-customers/12

8. Reduction for partly secured cash accounts

Subtotal

1,843.682.33

Subtotal of Adjusted Total Debits

292,062,154.83

Reduce Subtotal by 1%

1%

Adjusted total line item #10

289,141,533 28

11 . Securities Borrowed to Effectuate Short Sales by Customers and
Securities Borrowed to make delivery on Customers'
Securities Failed to Deliver

12 . Fails to Deliver oe Customer Securities not older than 30 calendar days (as
determined by Allocation or Specific Identification)




Unadjusted Balance

A . Additions

1. Clearing Accounts with net debit balances attributable to
customer transactions (Clearing Corporations)

2. Drafis receivable outstanding less than 30 calendar days
related to customer transaction / 13

Subtotal -
B . Deductions
I. Securities which are in the firm's physical possession and
control and in excess of the broker-dealer's possession and
control requirements for three business days past settlement,
2. Others (explain nature)
Subtotal =
Adjusted line item # 12 =
Agpregate Debit items 289,141,533.28
B . Determination of Requirements
Apgregate Credit Items 292.939.276.51
Aggreszate Debit Ttems 289.141,533.28
Net Credit'{Debit) 3,797.743.23
Required Reserve (100% of Net Credit if making a weekly computation
or 105% if monthly) 3,707,743.23
C . Frequency of Computation [v]  weekly ] Menthly
Monthly, if:
[4]  Aggregate Indebtedness: Net Capital Ratio < 800% 53%
AND
:l Aggregate Customer Funds < P25 million 292 939 276.51

I} . Special Reserve Bank Account Balance

Special Reserve Account balance Prior to Computation

61,600,023.00

Less: Deposit Required

3,797.743.23

Additional Deposit Required

Note: Deposit should be made no later than 10 a.m. on the second banking day
following computation date.




SCHEDULE V

ASIASEC EQUITIES, INC.
A REPORT DESCRIBING ANY MATERIAL INADEQUACY FOUND TO EXIST
OR FOUND TO HAVE EXISTED SINCE THE DATE OF THE PREVIOUS AUDIT
DECEMBER 31, 2024

We noted no matters involving the Company's internal control structure and its operations that we
consider to be material weakness.
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I, DENNIS L. IGNACIO of the above mentioned entity do solemnly swear that
all matters set forth in this inventory of all securities and stock certificates for the
year ended December 31, 2024 are true and correct to the best of my knowledge
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DENNIS Lf IGNACIO

President
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SCHEDULE VI

ASIASEC EQUITIES, INC.

RESULTS OF QUARTERLY SECURITIES COUNT
CONDUCTED PURSUANT TO SRC RULE 52.1-10 AS OF THE DATE OF THE
POSITION STATEMENT IN THE ANNUAL AUDITED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2024

Please see attached.



ASIASEC
FQUITIES
INC.

BF Chatham House, 116 Valero cor. V. A,
Rufing Sts. Salcedo Village, Makati City 1227
Office '® 845-3427 10 24

Exchange ® 891-9370to 74

Facsimile (632) 845-3418

ASIASEC EQUITIES, INC.
RESULTS OF INVENTORY COUNT
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2024

WAULT M TRAMSFER

DUETOD OTHER

DUE FROM MV AS OF
SHARES SHARES SHARES SHARES shares IH2eed

A58 AMALGAMATED £.000.00 - 1.8
ATOK BIG WEDGE CO. E3.133.00 G
ABACORE CAP. HLDGS 20.8969.500.00 053
AZIABESRT GRP INT'L TE4.110.00 28.20
ABRS-CEN CORP, AZ3,120,00 4.0
ARE-CAN FOR 2%0,000.00 18]
ABE-CBM PREF. SHRE TIEETS.00 = -

AYALA CORP 1300 185.00 5.830.00 BA0.480.00 95,00
ACESITE HOTEL CORP 1449,750.00 1.78
ACEN CORPORATION 10.000.00 T A07.610.00 4.00
AGEN PREF SERIES A 197 800.00 1.050:00
ACEM PREF SERIES B 2.590.00 1. 05RO
AYBLA CORP. PREF A 14, 710,00 2,850.00
AYALA CORP FREF B3 T2.500.00 205200
AYALA CORP V. PREF TEZ3A.00 = -

ALSONS CONS RES, 247.000.00 LEL
ABOITIZ VENTURES BE0.0D 82.200.00 25720000 443 230,00 .35
ALLIANCE GLOSAL HOH D000 136,400.00 5,654 300,00 G.on
ARTHALAND CORP. E47,303.00 oar
ARTHALAMND PREF_ O 4,000,00 46440
ARTHALAND PREF. F 2.000.00 50250
ANCHOR LAMD HLOGS: 48,000,040 480
AYALA LAND, BC, 26300 1.000.00 AT 000 S0.000.00 13,638,242 00 2820
AYALA LAND - PREF, A4 520,00 & .

ALLDAY MARTS. INC. 32, TA0.000.00 o013
AYALALAND LOGISTIC 3.500.00 52,05, 285.00 170
ALTERMERGY HLDGS. 1,460.000.00 120
AGRINURTURE, INC, 426.242.00 051
A SORIARD CORP 5470200 336.450.00 1388
ABDITIZ POWER CORP 5. T
APC GROUP. TNC. 24,474, 000K o]
APDLLO GLOBAL CAP. 2,748, 753.300.00 a0
ANGLD PHIL. HLOGS. 2.723.740.00 045
ALTUS PROP VENTURE 40. 78000 a3z
APEX MINING CO INC 240500 40,193 75500 345
ABRA MINING & INDS A20.2TE000000 0.00
ARANETA FROP_INC. 1.3TH 390,00 Q.51
AREIT. INC. 1.000,00 1. 778300000 65
RASLAG CORP. 50000000 1403
ATLAS CONS MNG 7.000.00 L80E.00 2.038.074.00 438
AZIAN TERMINAL NG 3.400.00 481203300 17.00
AT HBOLDINGS, INC 14, 230,000,080 o.52
ATN HLDGS,INC.-B 1,070.000,00 0.82
A518 UNITED BANE 1,464.00 E1.50
AXELUM RESCURCES 2 48E.D00.O0 258
BALAI NI FRUITAS 58100000 .36
BENGUET CORP 444897700 387
BENGUET CORP-B 1.205 536.00 a4
BERJ&YA PHILE, S.00000 SHLED0 00 5.0
BOO UNIBANK. INC. A5310.00 §14.846.00 144,00
BELLE CORPORATION 5.080.063.00 166
BOULEVARD HLOGE 7590000000 o407
BRIGHT KINDLE RES. B10.008 00 .68
BLOOMBERRY RESORTS 22,502 30000 4.56
BANK OF COMMERCE 147020000 BE
BANK OF THE FHIL SEZ00 42 750,00 5.080.00 4T STE 122,00
A BROWNCO., INC. &, 706656 00 .56
A BACWN "4 PREF. 4B.200.00 B6.50
A BROWN "B PREF. 1000000 10400
A BROWN "C" PREF. 38.000.00 107.20
BASIC EMERGY CORP, 538, 138.00 ot
CHELSEA LOG, &INFRA 1, 760.500.00 1
CALATA CORP, 243 44B D0 .

CHIMNA BANKING CORP s5211.00 19.000.00 5 110.877.00 63,50
CITYLAKD DEV 1,201,544, EDB.00 058
CEBU AIR. INC. .00 1.550. 22800 2825
CEBU AIR CONY PREF 7. 383,00 3450
CROWHN EQUITIES INC REHE T iRa ] 008
CENTRO ESCOLAR 1600000 12580
CEMEX HLDGS PHLS, 8.338,5093.00 1.78
COMCEPCION INDUS. 1.473.630.00 1238
CEBU LANDMASTERS 1.871.392.00 285
C. LANDMASTERS A1 13.000.00 1.000.00
C. LAMOMASTERS A2 11.000.00 1.OBE.00
CENTURY PAC. FOOD 14.400.00 A5, 000,00 41,95
CONVERGE SOLUTIONS TECTDE.6ED.00 16.14
COAL ASIA HOLDINGS SZE000.00 0aa
COL F&. GROUP B.280 00 165
COSCO CAPITAL INC. 7,085 800,00 120792900 538
COSMOS BOTTLING JR200.00 -

CENTURY PROPERTIES 26935 TEE.00 42
CENTURY PEAK HLOGS 1000000000 1.ITEG00.00 14, 2623000 .00 280
CIMCORE RE ENERGY 109.000.00 an
CITICORE REIT CORF A 3500000 ans
LR 5148 CHEM. 2100004 1M
CT5 GLOBAL EQUITY 30000000 14, 1540000 088
CYBER BAY CORP. 95,105 TRO.OD 0.33
CYBER BAY-S440% 2000000 = -

DOUBLEDRAGON CORP. 1,357 400,00 1020
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AS [ASEC BF Chatham House, 116 Valero cor. V. A,

Rufino Sts, Salcedo Village, Makati City 1227

EQUITIES L el e

Exchange & 891-9370 1o 74

l N C Facsimile {632) 845-3418

ASIASEC EQUITIES, INC,
RESULTS OF INVENTORY COUNT
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2024

WAULT I TRAMSFER DUE FROM DUETO OTHER MY A5 OF
SHARES SHARES SHARES SHARES shares MNh220ee

ODMF REIT, INC. 35.928,000.00 1.03
DOUBLEDRAGON FREF. 315.860.00 g7.20
DEL MOMNTE PACIFIC 31.300.00 3E8
DFNN. BNC. 322.100.00 288
DOMINION HLDGS INC T.890.00 155, 820.00 1.60
DTS CME HOLDINGS B K000 11.127,995,00 1.64
DIZON COPPER 48, 741,00 209
DMCI HOLDIMNGS INC. TE800.00 19.508,500.00 0.E2
DM WENCESLAD ASS0C DL 00,00 552
PHILAE HLDGS CORP. H3.640.00 286
DAL INDUSTRIES iNC 5.842.200.00 608
DISCOVERY WORLD 4. 00000 122
EASYCALL COMM PHIL 17,005.00 221
EAST COAST VULCAN SATIO0 13,229.095,00 03t
EEICORP T3, 396.00 380
EEICORP. PREF. A 200.00 4200
EE| CORP, PREF. B TIT. 360,00 aE 45
P E-GAME VENTURES 38,7350, 00000 oo
EXPORT BANK - & B00.588.00 -
EMPIRE EAST LAND 216200 11261300 otz
EMFERADOR. INC. F5.000.00 1806
ENEX ENERGY CORP. 1.218.929.00 500
ETELECARE WARRANT 3300 . i
EURO-MED LAB.PHILS FI2000.00 [2F: =3
EVER GOTESCO 5.518.000.00 0.26
EAST WEST BAMNK 430435400 G985
FIRST ABACUS FIN. BO000.00 0.e5
SMC FOOD & BEV INC 23207450.00 52 TS
FIzARD COFFEE GRP. T EIS000.00 0BG
FLINVEST DEVT, EERAFRO0 404
FERROMNOLUX HOLDINGS 129,000.00 535
FAREASTERM UNN 3.82.00 TFIEO0
FILIPIND FUND INC. 23.351.80 G543
FIRET GEN CORP. 4. 854 80 00 B2
FLINVEST REIT EA.000.00 TOAZI TN SL5E1.400.00 235
F& | PRINCE HLDS 12,000.00 250
FILINVEST LAND INC. FTRAIAMD 7840438 00 amn
15t METRO EQUITY 30.596.00 1086
GLOBAL FERROMICKEL FAE5117.00 104
ALLIARCE FOOOS INT 060000 400.00 189 87252700 038
FIRET PHIL HLDG #1.00 2070 B15 50 o0 B 0T
FORUM PACIFIC. M, 1,260, [0 10 b i
FORUM PACIFICSASD% AL D0 ) .
FRUITAS HLDGS. BNC 1260 DOG.00 nga
FWBC HLDGS., INC. 15,241.00 . 3y
GEOGRACE RESOURCES AR ELE 00 00 0N
GLOBAL EST RESORTS 1637 3.650.00 DEd
GLOBE TELECOM. INC EO0.30 420000 TLETADA 2B 00
G RETWORK IMC. £ 578, 00 00 E11
Ghia HOLDINGE - PR 285 000 00 Ban
GOTESCO - Dalsted LR X i) -
GOTESCO-B Dalsted 1012800 =
GREENERGY HLDG INC TooBat Bf40d 013
GINEERA SAM MIGUEL i ] Ll TR0
GT CAPITAL HLOGS. 1350 00 BERAC
GT CAPITAL PREF, 107160 -

GT CAPITAL PREF. B 45 (0000 5010
HOUSE OF INVST A.500.100 338
HOLCHM FHILS. INC. 51,00 P =
ALLHOME CORP. 36025 0005 054
8890 HOLDIMGS INC. AT GO0.000 o0 BTGB 41500 9405
HALUS TALK. INC. ST0 0 o 108
GOLDEN Ky HOLDINGE 15.00 bl -4 B 225000
EREMIT. INC, A 024
INTL CONTAINER BP.33040 A5 27000 157.081.00 A8E 00
ITALPINAS DEV CORF O B, ETEOD 30
INT, MELECTRDNICS 5845, B HLOD 148
MMPERIAL RES IMC 1.000.00 £.69500 (eF k]
FHIL INFRADEY HLOG 20060, 600 1 £847.500.00 592
IOMICS, NG 2.7B5.500.00 0,84
M HOLDINGS, NG Jas.an0.00 L]
PECPLE. INC i, 158,00 B.TB
ESLANDINFO TECH A5.350.000 00 044
JOLLIBEE FOODS 4 Ba0 H.550.00 LHEE 00 1502, 00 25300
JOLLIBEE PREF. B 1410300 ELEN
G SUMMIT HLDS G 1.00 w5 B 00 ANHO0 T 5:40.038.0C 2085
THE KEEPERS HLDGS H0B6.582.050.00 223
KEFPEL PHLS, PROP 9.TET.C0 278
KEPPEL PHIL HLDS 444,60 TE 46
CITY & LaND BEANOD 28. 00000 TET0sa L0 .ol
LBC EXPRESS HLDGS. 3071 00000 1183
LEPANTO CONS MNG 33303088200 07
LEPANTO CONS MRNG-B 245200 187844 ET0C0 e
LMG CORP 20,062.00 o2
LODESTAR INVEST. 4 &18 0060 00 .28
FAGIFIC DNLINE HR000.30 258
LOPEZ HLDGS. CORP, ERIER SH.886.133.00 &
LORENZD SHIPPING TE0L00 [48- ]
LT GROUP INC.. 000000 35,504 250000 10.50
MAKILA MG CORP TEE, D000 & 246,273 80800 0.0a
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ASIASEC
EQUITIES
INC.

8F Chatham House, 116 Valero car. V. A,

Rufino Sts. Salcedo Village, Makati City 1227

Dffice B 845-3421 10 24
Exchange ® 891-9370 to 74
Facsimile (632) 845-3418

ASIASEC EQUITIES, INC,

RESULTS OF INVENTORY COUNT

AS OF DECEMEER 31, 2024

WAULT I TRANSFER DUE FROM DUE TO OTHER MV AS OF
SHARES SHARES SHARES SHARES shares 22024

MANILA MNG CORP-S 1,526.003.019.00 [fsx]
MACROASIA CORF. 47, 00000 TA6.270.00 544
MACAY HLOGS . INC. 13.300.00 .52
METRD ALLIAMCE 33.300.00 083
METRD ALLIAMCE - 8 B.00000 08s
MARCVYENTURES HLOGS 2.E74.470.00 nIs
MAKE GROUP INC, 360.000.00 287
MAHILA BULLETIN BA5 428 00 oz2p
METROBANK 208, E00.00 50,440.00 287742000 T2.00
MARSTEEL - BEART% 65 .000.000.00 - -
MEDCO HLDGS,. mC, F20.000.00 o1z
MEDILNES DI INC TET0.000.0{ .31
MEGAWOIRLD CORP. 3651797200 208
MERALCO T450.00 E21.00 78.083.00 4B8.00
MAMULIFE FIN CORP. 4.Z76.00 1855700
MILLEMNIUM GLOBAL 3.580.000.00 nas
METRO GLOEAL HLOGS 50.318.778.00 1.00
RUANILA SOCKEY 1.935.955.00 127
MG INVESTMENTS 51.000.00 1.00

MART CONSUMER 4.0 1.900.00 080
MONDE MISSIN CORF. 361.060.000.00 274 40000 BE0
METRO PACIFIZ NV, 17500000 -
MFRLC ALLEED. INC. 1. 150,000,040 2.942.000.00 TH.014,500.00 084
MREIT, [NC. 3,086.800.00 13.34
METRO RET. 5STORES A5 D00UHE 120
MANILA WATER CO. BOS0.000.00 2700
MEGAWIDE COMNST AE37.500.00 243
MESAWIOE PREF. 28 VEIE0L00 85,00
MEGAWIDE FREF, 4 58.000.00 oT.05
MEGAWIDE PREF. 5 1B S0 EHY 10080
RASIPIT LUMBER 00,00 -
MIHAD MINERAL RES. 1 BIB.083 30 0.9
NICKEL AS|A CORP, 5.3E7.378.393.00 423,750,940 00 3459
HEGROS HAVIGATION 2LETAO00
ROW CORPORATION 126720000 159
HATL, REINSURANCE 456600000 0.6a
NEXGENESIS CORFP. L5000 90 T.00
DCEANAGOLD [PHILS) G0 50000 1402
OMICO CORPORATION T O fDRE.7OEUDC 205
DRIENTAL FET & M ETT.913. 95500 LiX)E]
QRENTAL PET-B BESREI G700 e
QRIENTAL PENINSULA 5 788500 0% 044
FPHILODRILL CORS 5. 000.00 L RS AR G0 oo
PACIFICA HLDGS MC THEI80.00 1.0
FAL HLOGS. INC, 1908800 455
PANXYS, BT, B 0N0 m
FHIL, BUIS, BANK Sald o200 2T
PHIL BANK OF CORM TOT 6ECO00 1555
PETRON CORP, 5.000.00 A0LORE 288 an 253
FICOP RES.. INC. 405,00 30540
PETROEMERGY RES. 32 85700 380
FUREGOLD & CLLB Brdid ARG was
PREMIERE HOREZON 10L5 35D TN oAy
PHILEOMSAT HOLDING e ZLE 0D 1,400
PHIL ESTATE CORF < OO0 (HE 02g
FPHINKAS CORFORATION 22000 .00
PH RESORTS GROUP FEd 00000 .58
FHIL INDEX FUND TR0 ;! i~
SHAKEY'S PiZ2a 182,200 0 T
DIGIPLUS BNTERALT B0, 60 12,590 54474 FENL]
PANASONIC MFG PHIL 1.2030 545
PRIMETOWN PROP 1 DO CKE £
FHIL MATL BANK AR MO0 kv
PHIL MATL COMST 10000 480
PHOEMIX PETROLEUR 122 E0T 237
PHOEMIE PET PREF3E 358000 A GE
PHOENIX PET FREF 4 3308500 i TE0
PHILTOWN FROF. WS 14 BERIDD =
PHIL RACING CLUB 1, BEKL 0 TN
PREMIERE 151 REIT 74,000, 223
PETRON P. PREF. 38 16, 840,00 00
PETROM P PREF. 424 550,00 100500
PETROMN P PREF. 4B 1.850.00 [HeF{ste]
PETROM P. PREF 40 20,740 00 10300
PETROM P. FREF. 4D 870,00 T G0
PETRON P. PREF_4E 28, 640.00 1050 G0
FRIME MEDIA HLOGE. S8UEEE 00 213
FRIMEX CORPORATION 12AETR00.00 i.81
PHIL SAVINGS BANK 104811400 58.20
PHIL STK EXCHANGE 2ARO00LHY 164.00
PTAT CORP Q3R.000 06 .33
PHILEX MNG CORP 42500 L THO 24 BERATY OO 27
PEP ENERGY CORP. 300 Ta3.00 2 AT 10600 287
RCBEC L TIRETI.ON 2285
ROXAS & GO INC. 521000 272
RL COMMERCIAL REIT 245 (0000 110.681.400.00 585
REPLBLIC GLASE 100, 354,04 275
RFM CORFORATION 24250000 347
ROBINSONS LAND 1,864 E85.00 LR
PHIL REALTY & HLOG 54 54,00 o3
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AS IASEC &6F Chatham House, 116 Valero cor, V. A.
Rufino Sts, Salcedo Vil ! kati City 1227
EQUITIES e i

Exchange ‘& 897-9370 10 74

l N C Facsimile (632) 845-3418

ASIASEC EQUITIES, ING.
RESULTS OF INVENTORY COUNT
AS OF DECEMEER 31, 2024
WAULT IH TRANSFER DUE FROM DUE TD OTHER MY AS OF
SHARES SHARES SHARES BHARES shares. MMz
ROCEWELL LAND CORP 801,841, 756.00 57
ROXAS HOLDINGS INC 6, 108,465,000 145
ROBINZONS HOLDINGS 20.000.00 6.400.210.00 600
SRS PHILE, CORP, E24.00 493
SEMIRARS MNG CORP. 1,304 B80.00 3490
SECURITY BANK CORP 362500 TILO.00 4,350.00 118,434,562 00 BrOD
SECURITY BANK PREF 2.508.110.00 - -
SWET FOODS 4,574, 705.00 006
SF-PREFERRED 5.496.00 174
S0LID GROUP INC. 576.000.00 103
SYMERGY GRID & DEV 461, 7040.00 7,536 Y000 580
SHELL PLIPINAS 1,567 880.00 750
SHANG PROPERTIES E3A00 3494
SN LIFE FINANCLA, 1.413.00 240000
ETA, LUCIA LAND A0, 30000 290
SMNVESTMENT CORP B.250.00 48.470.00 11.385.00 885,00
SAN MIGUEL CORP. 20,160.00 Baazon 102.500.00 9.621.00 AT A3418.00 BE.OD
SMC PREFERRED ¥ 1.B78.510.00 1330
SMC FREFERRED &1 1,315.200.00 228
SMC PREFERRED 2-J B56.320.00 80
SMC FREFERRED 2 25352000 TO00
SMLC FREF SERIES 2L 1. 716180000 TTEs
SMC PREF SERIES 2H 1,187 500,00 a7
SMC PREF SERIES 20 E15.340.00 8230
SM BRIME HLDGS (NG 200.800,00 6.643,00 19.218.715.00 2818
SOUTH CHNA SEA ET3.000.00 VRS
EPC POWER CORP. TH. 200000 S
SEAFRONT RES CORP 187.536.00 180
5P NEW ENERGY CORP 3381300 102
FF1-8PT 1477.000.00 = -
551 GROUR, INC 6, 000,00 318
STIHOLDIMGS 12, 20183600 134
ESTENIEL MFG. CORP. 189702800 157
VISTAMALLS. INC. E200.00 182
SUNTRLUST BHOME DEV. 2,582 N0 iR i)
TEC METALS CORP. 2.062.000000 0.36
TRANSPACIFIG GROUP 16 FEE000.00 04
CIRTEX PREF BZ-20 BEG00.00 4G40
CIRTEX HLDGS CORP. 4. 55042600 132
PLDT. NG, 11.00 L0 £34. 49800 128500
PLDT 10%-5K 130,00 - .
TOF FRONTIER HLOGS 185800 7200 12 183.5951.00 Lain
HARBOR STAR SERY A5 DONNKE Qi
LINICN BA b S0.947 O 141404600 WA
UNHOLDMGS M. T 135000
WKL RES & HLOGS 5.000.00 1,428 000600 - .
LHITED PARAGON MNG £ 355 945 25800 [iFil]
LRE0M INTL CORP #0542 LRG0 (k]
LENIY ROBMA CORP A5 500,%) 207,000 BR300 900G
LIWIDE HLDGS, ING. 100000000 2L DN O -
WANTAGE EQUITIES ATRETA O O.TF
WITARSCH CORP SO0 TR W 21000000 dd AL 0010 (PR
VISTA LAND 2FAEAL 00 LE
WISTA LAND PREF 28 £0 03000 AL
VICTORIAS MILL C0 VTG40 00 298
WISTAREIT. INC T E53.000.06 1.559
WIVANT CORP. 511200 180
FPHLWEE CORP. WAL 1305 140
WELLEX INDS,, NG, 4,214,300.00 D2y
WILCOM DEPOT, INC. THE.LON.00 1430
WATERFRONT PHIL 157500000 36
HURPAS, INC, FILREL AR 6. 708, D060 PR
_ZEUS HOLDINGS, NG ———— R B AR OO0 O G0
TOTAL 5,840,383,732.00 348,097,9297.00 5,158 460.00 4,767 473,00 21,080,113,509.00

Pagedold



ASIASEC EQUITIES, INC.

SCHEDULE Vi

SCHEDULE SHOWING FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS IN TWO
COMPARATIVE PERIODS UNDER SRC RULE 68, AS AMENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

All secondary licensees of the Commission (financing companies, broker dealer of securities and
underwriters) and public companies must present a schedule showing financial soundness indicators in
two comparative periods, as follows:

Ratio Formula 2024 2023
Current ratio Total current assets P588,383,785 P400,249,980
Divided by total current liabilities 301,335,649 131,313,679
1.95 3.05
Acid test ratio Total quick assets P576.614,804 P389,347 887
Divided by total current liabilities 301,335,649 131,313,679
1.91 297
Debt-to-equity ratio  Total liabilities P323,670,759 P149,117,283
Divided by total equity 285,530,352 261,783,347
1.13 0.57
Assel-to-equity ratic  Total assets #609,201,111 P410,900 630
Divided by total equity 285,530,352 261,783,347
213 1.57
Return on equity Met income P18,735,357 P2,922 327
Divided by average equity 272,191,725 271,327,261
6.88% 1.08%
Average equity is computed as follows:
Beginning equity P258,853,096 283,801,428
Ending equity 285,530,352 258,853,096
Total 544,383,448 542,654,522
Divided by 2 2
Average equity P272,191,725 Pg?‘|432?,261l
Return on assets Met income #18,735,357 ?2,922 327
Divided by average assets 510,050,871 464,220,419
3.67% 0.63%
Average assets is computed as follows:
Beginning assets P410,900,630 P517 540,208
Ending assets 609,201,111 410,900,630
Total 1,020,101,741 928,440,838
Divided by 2 2
Average assets #510,050,871 P464,220 419

{Forward)




MNet profit margin Met income
Divided by net sales

Other relevant ratios:
RBCA ratio Met liquid capital
Total risk capital requirement

Ratio of Al to NLC Aggregate indebtedness
Divided by net liquid capital

P18,735,357 £2,922,327
53,267,318 83,159,026
35.17% 3.51%
P255,215,578 P244,917,394
133,955,660 97,450,632
190.52% _ 251.32%
P297,818,108 £130,803,242
255,215,578 244,917,394
116.69% 53.41%




SCHEDULE Vil

Reconciliation of Retained Earnings Available for Dividend Declaration
As of December 31, 2024

ASIASEC EQUITIES, INC.
8th Floor, Chatham House, 116 Valero corner V.A. Rufino Street, Salcedo Village, Makati City

Unappropriated Retained Earnings, beginning of reporting period P 86,946,414

Add: Category A: Items that are directly credited to Unappropriated

Retained Earnings
Reversal of RE appropriation/s -
Effect of restatements or prior-period adjustments -
Others: Cumulative fair value adjustments on financial assets

measured at FVTPL (73,352,931)
Deferred tax liabilities excluding effect of remeasurements 15,955,935
Retirement benefit obligation excluding remeasurements (7,250,368) (64,647,364)

Less: Category B: Items that are directly debited to Unappropriated
Retained Earnings
Dividend declaration during the reporting period -

Retained Earnings appropriated during the reporting period (1,873,536)
Effect of restatements or prior-period adjustments —
Others (describe nature) - (1,873,535.70)
Unappropriated Retained Earnings, as adjusted 20,425,514
as adjusted to available for dividend distribution, beginning
Add/Less: Net Income (loss) for the current year 18,735,357

Less: Category C.1: Unrealized income recognized in the profit or loss

during the reporting period (net of tax)
Equity in net income of associate/joint venture, net of dividends declared —
Unrealized foreign exchange gain, except those attributable to cash and
cash equivalents —
Unrealized fair value adjustment (market-to-market gains) of financial
instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) (13,563,068)
Unrealized fair value gain of Investment Property -
Other unrealized gains or adjustments to the retained earnings as a
result of certain transactions accounted for under the PFRS: —

Subtotal (13,563,068)

Add: Category C.2: Unrealized income recognized in the profit or loss

in prior reporting periods but realized in the current reporting period

(net of tax)
Realized foreign exchange gain, except those attributable to Cash and
cash equivalents -
Realized fair value adjustment (mark-to-market gains) of financial
instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) -
Realized fair value gain of Investment Property —
Other realized gains or adjustments to the retained earnings as a result
of certain transactions accounted for under the PFRS: -

Sub-total -

Add: Category C.3: Unrealized income recognized in the profit or loss
in prior reporting periods but reversed in the current reporting period
(net of tax)
Reversal of previously recorded foreign exchange gain, except those
attributable to cash and cash equivalents -
Reversal of previously recorded fair value adjustment (mark-to-market gains)
of financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) -
Reversal of previously recorded fair value gain of Investment Property -
Reversal of other unrealized gains or adjustments to the retained
earnings as a result of certain transactions accounted for under the
PFRS, previously recorded —
Sub-total -
Adjusted Net Income/Loss 25,597,803

Add: Category D: Non-actual losses recognized in profit or loss during
the reporting period (net of tax)
Depreciation on revaluation increment (after tax) -
Sub-total -




Add/Less: Category E: Adjustments related to relief granted by the SEC

and BSP
Amortization of the effect of the reporting relief -
Total amount of reporting relief granted during the year —
Others -

Sub-total —

Add/Less: Category F: Other items that should be excluded from the
determination of the amount of available for dividends distribution
Net movement of treasury shares (except for reacquisition of
redeemable shares) -
Net movement of deferred tax asset not considered in the reconciling
items under the previous categories -
Net movement in deferred tax asset and deferred tax liabilities
related to same transaction, e.g., set up of right of use asset and
lease liability, set-up of asset and asset retirement obligation, and set-

up of service concession asset and concession payable 2,907,726

Adjustment due to deviation from PFRS/GAAP - gain (loss) -

Others: Accretion of retirement obligation 923,260

Sub-total 3,830,986

Total Retained Earnings, end of the reporting period available for dividend P 29,428,789




SCHEDULE IX

ASIASEC EQUITIES, INC.
SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF EXTERNAL AUDITOR FEE RELATED INFORMATION
For the Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

2024 2023
Total Audit Fees P#110,000 #100,000
Non-audit services fee:
Other assurance services P- P-
Tax services = -
All other services = =
Total Non-audit Fees P— P_
Total Audit and Non-audit Fees £110,000 P100,000




